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Directors’ Report

Directors

N J-M D Moreau
P L H Maseo y Guell Rivet
| Robinson

Secretary
J P Small

Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

The directors have pleasure in submitting therr report together with the audited financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2007

REVIEW OF ACTIVITIES

Results and performance

Guardian Royal Exchange plc (the Company) and its subsidianes together form the Guardian Royal
Exchange Group (the Group) The pnincipal activity of the Company 1s to act as a helding company for its
subsidiaries which underwnte general insurance and healthcare business in the United Kingdom and the
Republic of Ireland

The pre-tax profit of the Group for the year has decreased by £230m to £121m, principally resulting from
an adverse underwnting result arising from the January storms and summer floods in the UK, and a net
loss on the transfer of the Life & Savings business and the disposal of a subsidiary

The underwnting loss for the year 1s £101m (2006 profit of £45m) The pesitive benefit of premium
growth in both UK general insurance and healthcare was badly affected by the adverse claims experience
in 2007 The 2007 resulis do not iInclude any contribution from the Life & Savings business which 1n 2006
contnbuted £30m of iInsurance revenue and £12m of underwnting profit

The growth in general msurance premiums was due largely to strong growth in volumes in UK motor and
across all lines in healthcare, together with growth In delegated authonty business improving both travel
and warranty Creditor business was affected by a contraction in the market and property and casualty
were also impacted by the desire to write business at premium levels which are sustainable UK motor in
particular benefited from the acquisition in the year by the smmediate parent company, AXA UK plc, of
onbne insurance broker Swiftcover which increased tn-force policies by 178%, helped by increased
volumes through aggregaters This growth was not mirrored in the Insh motor market which continues to
be affected by lower average premiums in part as a result of lower claims costs

2007 saw major catastrophic events in the UK January storms and summer floods Together the losses
attributable to these events are currently estimated at £225m (before tax) A review of pnor year reserves
during 2007 indicated that many habihty claims have been settled for amounts lower than originally
anticipated and this led to a release of reserves which partially offset the weather events Current year
underlying loss ratios have worsened though a combination of business mix and detenoration in pet and
warranty business, although healthcare loss ratios have improved partly through sustained cost controls,
and Insh ¢laims costs have fallen The combined operating ratio for the UK general insurance business
reflects these 1ssues and a challenging increase In commssions following soft market conditions and
broker consolidation leading to pressure on rates

Additional provisions totalling a net £36m have had to be made this year Advance commission has been
impaired by a further £17m (cffset by a compensating £5m reduction in an associated hability for retained
comrussion) due to an expected fall off in future business as a result of the ‘credit crunch’ A review of an
underperforming contract has resulted 1n an onerous contract provision of £12m and a further £12m to
cover a potential dispute with an agent

2 Gt e s Gu?




Directors’ Report continued

The net investment result shows a profit of £354m (2006 £326m) Other net iInvestment income reflects
increased net realised gains which arose through taking advantage of favourable market conditions, offset
by ncreased impairment as the markets subsequently detenorated

The procedures put In place by AXA UK plc have enabled the Group to identify all significant exposures to
nsk ansing out of the current financial market conditions The valuation of financial instruments, where
market iquidity was negatively affected or where no active market exists, was considered specifically, and
all credit events that have occurred prior to 31 Becember 2007 have been considered

As disclosed under Transfer of Business, the Group’s subsidiary, PPP tifetime care plc, has transferred alt
of its business to a fellow subsidiary, AXA Sun Life plc The AXA Life Group I1s committed to continuing the
development of PPP hfetime care’s products and pursuing the policy of providing a high quality service
with canng support, which will consolidate its market position

Strategy and acquisitions

The Group has in place a vanety of methodologies to monitor and manage the risks it accepts and to plan
for increasing its involvement in its chosen markets A number of initatives are in place to deliver
profitable growth in these markets and distnibution channels We continue to pursue successfully the AXA
Group's global inthiative, Ambition 2012, which sets stretching targets for doubling revenues and tripling
earmings by 2012, and the goal of AXA becoming the ‘preferred company’ for customers and employees

In 2007, AXA UK plc continued with its prionty strategy of securning extra distnbution capability The
Group's subsidiary, Venture Preference Limited, was transferred to a new broking and advisory arm,
structurally separate from the distribution and underwnting business of the GRE Group The broking
business of Venture Preference 1s wholly independent The business placed with the Group remains
largely unchanged and represents a low percentage of their turnover

In March 2007, AXA UK plc acquired GBI (Holdings) Limited whose active subsidiary 1s the direct online
tnsurance broker Swiftcover Swiftcover continues to grow and operate successfully as an independent
entity, with a subsidiary company of the Group underwniting 100% of thewr motor business Swiftcover's
expertise In web-based distribution will be further utilised as the Group grows its direct capabilites in other
product lines, including re-entering the direct market under the AXA brand

Future outlook

As previously indicated, the 2007 results have been severely impacted by weather events and the Group
remains subject to a strongly competitive UK and Insh insurance market With the maintenance of pncing
disciplines and the absence of major weather related events, the Group expects the combined operating
ratio to return to levels witnessed In recent years in the short-term in 2008, the Group's key focus
remains on improving our customer expenence and service qualty to build customer loyalty and trust, and
continuing to strengthen our distribution capabilities, particularly in the direct distnbution arena The
Group has a number of mitiatives in place to builld on these areas and to move the business forward In
2008

TRANSFER OF BUSINESS

As reporied in the Directors’ Report accompanying the Group financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2006, durning March 2006 initial Court approval was received to commence the process
under a Part Vil Scheme

a) to transfer all of the policies and associated assets and habilities in the long-term fund of PPP
Ifetime care plc into the long-term fund of AXA Sun Life plg, and

b) to transfer all the assets and liabilites in the shareholder fund of PPP lifetime care plc into the
AXA Sun Life ple shareholder fund

The purpose of the Scheme was to simplify the corporate structure of the AXA Sun Life Holdings plc group
and to enhance its capital efficiency

Final Court approval of the Scheme was obtamed in July 2006 The Scheme was implemented on
1 January 2007 and resulted in £532m of assets and £408m of labilities being transferred into AXA Sun
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Directors’ Report continued

Life plc for ml consideration The carrying value of PPP lifetime care plc was £124m and the transfer
resulted in a loss to the Group of this amount

GOING CONCERN

The financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis as the directors are satisfied that, at the
time of approving the financial statements, both the Company and the Group have the resources to
continue In business for the foreseeable future

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year ended 31 December 2007 (2006
interim £2 billion, final £nil)

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company at the date of this report are shown on page 2

Mr | D Richardson resigned as a director of the Campany on 31 December 2007

Mr | Robinson was appointed as a director of the Company on 1 January 2008

Mr P J Hubbard resigned as a director of the Company on 11 Apnl 2008

APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with Article 89 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr | Robinson will retire at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, having been appointed a director since the last Annual General

Meeting, and, being eligible, will offer himself for re-appointment

In accordance with Article 90 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr P L H Maso y Guell
Rivet will retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting Being eligible he will offer himself
for re-appomtment

INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company 1s party to a group-wide indemnity policy which benefits all of its current directors and 15 a
qualifying third party indemnity provision for the purpose of the Compantes Act 1985

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

According to the register of directors’ interests, none of the directors had interests in the share capital and
debentures of the Company or its subsidiary undertakings

EXERCISE OF DIRECTORS' AXA SA OPTIONS

1 director of the Company exercised share options during the year (2006 2)

EMPLOYEES

The AXA UK Group, through each of its employing subsidiary companies, 1s committed to a policy of equal
opportunity In recruitment and training, irrespective of gender, mantal status, race or ethnic ongin  Full
and farr consideration 1s alsc given to disabled persons including the rehabilitation and retention of staff

who become disabled, having regard to their particular aptitudes and abilities

Great importance 1s placed on good communicatiens with employees and in seeking to inform and involve
staff in the development of their operations and in the achievement of their business goals

A full range of written, audio, wvidec and regular face-to-face communications, including team briefings,
regular appraisals, company newspapers and various bulletins 1s used

Regular consultation ts maintained with independent and certified trade unions on the complete range of
employment and business 1ssues




Directors’ Report continued

Many businesses within the AXA UK Group have Investors in People accreditation
PAYMENT OF CREDITORS

The Company's policy on the payment of creditors I1s to agree terms of payment when orders for goods
and services are placed and to pay in accordance with those terms

Balances outstanding for the Company at 31 December 2007 represented a credit period of 41 days
(2006 restated 49 days)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group applies a number of techniques to manage and mitigate its nsks Detalls are provided on
pages 28 to 33

STATEMENT OF DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

Each director in office at the date of approval of this report confirms that

a} so far as he 15 aware, there 1$ no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditors are
unaware, and

b) he has taken all the steps that he cught to have taken as a director in order to make himself
aware of any relevant audit information and to estabhish that the Company's auditors are aware of
that information

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

The directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and the Group and the Parent Company
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law
the directors have prepared the Group financial statements In accordance with Internationa!l Financial
Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union, and the Parent Company financial
statemenis mn accordance with applicable law and United Kingdem Accounting Standards (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) The Group and Parent Company financial statements
are required by law to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group and of
the profit or loss of the Group for that period

In preparing those financial statements, the directors are required to
+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
* make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

+ state that the Group financial statements comply with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union,
and with regard to the Parent Company financial statements, that applicable UK Accounting
Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements,

s prepare the Group and Parent Company financial statements on the going concern basis unless it
IS Inappropriate to presume that the Group will continue in business, in which case there should
be supporting assumptions or qualffications as necessary

The drrectors confirm that they have compled with the above requirements in preparing the financial
statements They also confirm that to the best of therr knowledge, the financial statements, prepared in
accordance with the applicable set of accounting standards, give a true and farr value of the assets,
habihties, financial position and profit of the Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation
taken as a whole

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable

accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and the Group and to enable them to ensure
that the Group financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS
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Directors’ Report continued

Regulation, and the Parent Company financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985 They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking
reascnable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and cther rrregulanties

AUDITORS

A Resolution to re-appoint the auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, who have indicated ther

willingness ta continue in office, and to authonse the directors to determine their remuneration will be
proposed at the Annual General Meeting

By Order of the Board

el

J.P.Small
Secretary
26 June 2008
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of Guardian Royal Exchange plc

We have audited the Group financial statements of Guardian Reyal Exchange ple for the year ended
31 December 2007 which comprise the Consolidated Income Statement, the Consolidated Balance Sheet,
the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, the Consolidated Statement of Recognised Income and Expense
and the related notes These Group financial statements have been prepared under the accounting
policies set out therein

We have reported separately on the Parent Company financial statements of Guardian Royal Exchange
plc for the year ended 31 December 2007

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibiities for prepanng the Annual Report and the Group financial statements in
accordance with apphcable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs} as adopted by
the Eurgpean Union are set cut in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

Our responsibility 1s to audit the Group financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and
regulatory requirements and Internationat Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) This report, including
the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the company's members as a body in accordance with
Section 235 of the Compames Act 1985 and for no other purpose We do not, in giving this opinion,
accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1s shown
or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing

We report to you our opinion as to whether the Group financial statements give a true and farr view and
whether the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation We also report to you whether in our opinion the information
given in the Directors’ Report 1s consistent with the Group financial statements

In addstion we report to you if, In ocur opinion, we have not received all the information and explanations we
require for our audit, or f information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other
transactions 1s not disclosed

We read the other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether it 1s consistent with
the audited Group financial statements The other information compnises only the Directors’ Report  We
consider the implications for our report If we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material
inconsistencies with the Group financial statements Our responsibilities do not extend to any other
information

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Irefand) 1ssued
by the Auditing Practices Board An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to
the amounts and disclosures in the Group financial statements It also includes an assessment of the
significant estimates and judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the Group financial
statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the Group’s circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanatons which we
considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the
Group financial statements are free from maternial misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other
wregularity or error In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of
information in the Group financial statements
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Independent Auditors’ Report continued |

Opinion
In our opinicn

s the Group financial statements give a true and farr view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union, of the state of the Group's affairs as at 31 December 2007 and of its profit
and cash flows for the year then ended,

¢ the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation, and

the information given n the Directors’ Report 1s consistent with the Group financial statements
?%’7}\ K oo Con /M “~f

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London

27 June 2008
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Consolidated Income Statement

for the year ended 31 December 2007

2007 2006
Note £m £m
Insurance revenue
Income from insurance contracts 3,319 3,171
Revenue ceded to reinsurers (121) {131)
Net insurance revenue 3 3,198 3,040
Other income
investment income 4 234 277
Net realised gains on available for sale financial assets 5 66 56
Other operating income 7 149 120
Total iIncome 3,697 3,493
Policyholder claims and benefits
Insurance claims and loss adjustment expenses 9 (2,136} (1,910)
Insurance claims and loss adjustment expenses
recoverable from reinsurers 9 7 {(8)
Other expenses
Net fair value losses on assets at fair value through
expenses 6 - (2}
Insurance contract acquisition expenses 10 (926) (855)
Marketing and admimistration expenses 10 (284) (243)
Cost of asset management services (5) (7)
Other operating expenses 8 (100) (97)
Operating result 253 371
Finance costs 12 {21) {20)
Loss on disposal of operations 41 {111) -
Profit before tax 121 351
Income tax expense 13 (8) {(70)
Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of
the Company 113 281
Earnings per share (pence per share) 14 10 66 26 52
Diluted earnings per share (pence per share) 14 10.66 26 52
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

as at 31 December 2007

2007 2006
Note £m £m

ASSETS
Goodwil! and mtangible assets 18 229 225
Property, plant and equipment 16 52 55
Investment property 17 121 54
Associate undertakings 21 - 10
Investment in financtal assets 22 4,473 5,125
Reinsurers' share of insurance contract labilities 23 164 308
Insurance and reinsurance receivables 24 1,079 961
Current taxation - 6
Deferred taxation 35 160 80
Deferred acquisition costs 19 383 313
Other recevables 25 1,077 602
Cash and cash equivalents 26 738 892
Total assets 8,476 8,631
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Consolidated Balance Sheet continued

as at 31 December 2007

2007 2006
Note £m £m
EQUITY
Share capital 27,28 56 56
Share premium 27,28 523 523
Other reserves 28,29 343 410
Retained earnings 28 947 814
Capital and reserves attributable to ordinary
shareholders 28 1,869 1,803
LIABILITIES
Techmcal provisions - Insurance contract habilities 30 5,569 5,757
Borrowings 32 301 405
Insurance and reinsurance habilites 3 260 247
Provisions for other habiliies and charges 33 100 75
Retirement benefit obligations 36 52 77
Other habilities 34 295 267
Current tax o -
Total habilities 6,607 6,828
Tetal equity and liabilities 8,476 8,631

The financial statements on pages 9 to 64 were approved by the Board of Directors on 26 June 2008 and

were signed on its behalf by

P —

1. Robinson
Director
26 June 2008
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

for the year ended 31 December 2007

2007 2006
Note £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 37 (20) 161
Income taxes paid (12) (94)
Interest paid (21) (20}
Interest received 256 252
Dividends received 30 27
Net cash from operating activities 233 326
Cash flows from Investing activities
Proceeds from sale of
Investments 1,667 3,297
Loan repayment received from related party - 2,000
Intangible assets - 2
Investments in subsichanes (net of cash disposed) 1 -
Purchase of
Investments {1,343) (3,296)
Bonds/loans granted to related parties {526) (137)
Property, plant and equipment (1) (12)
Intangible assets (48) (60)
Investments in subsidianes (net of cash acquired) (28) (13)
Net cash outflow from investing activities (288) 1,781
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid to ordinary shareholders - (2,000)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (59) 107
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 784 677
Exchange gains on ¢ash and cash equivalents 6 -
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 26 735 784
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Consolidated Statement of Recognised Income and Expense

for the year ended 31 December 2007

2007 2006

Note £m £m

Profit for the financial year 113 281
Exchange on revaluation of subsidiary net assets 20 (5)
Revaluation of available for sale financial assets (123) {101}
Actuanal gains on defined benefit schemes 36 23 15
33 190

Tax effect of tems not recognised in income statement 28 33 26

Total recognised income attnibutable to

equity shareholders 66 216
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Accounting Policies

Significant Accounting Policies

i

Basis of presentation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group are prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (iIFRS) as adopted by the European Union, International Financial
Reporting Interpretatons Committee (IFRIC) interpretations and with those parts of the Companies
Act 1985 apphicable to Companies reporting under IFRS They are prepared under the histoncal
cost convention, modified by the revaluation of available for sale financial investments and financial
instruments at fair value through income

The use of IFRS requires management to exercise Judgement in the selection and application of
accounting policies and in the use of accounting estimates Those areas which could have a
significant impact in the financial statements are set out on pages 17 to 21 and on page 27

As recommended by IAS 1, assets and habiliies are generally classified globally on the balance
sheet In increasing order of liquidity, which 15 more relevant for financial mstitutions than a
ctassification between current and non-current items  As for most insurance companies, expenses
are classified by destination in the income statement

The financial statements of the Parent Company are presented on pages 65 to 71

a} Changes in presentation

= The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year
except for the following

IFRS 7, Financial Instruments Disclosures

IFRS 7 introduces new disclosure requirements around the Group’s exposure to risk ansing
from financial instruments and does not have any impact on the classification and valuation
of the Group’s financial instruments, or the disclosures relating to taxation and trade and
other payables The additional disclosures relate to qualtative and quantitative information
including sensitivity analysis to market nsk and are incorporated in the Management of
Risks section There were also complementary amendments to 1AS 1, Presentation of
Financial Statements — Capital Disclosures, which introduces disclosures about the level of
an entty's capital and how it manages capital, and to IFRS 4, Insurance Contracts, which
addresses the disclosure requirements of nsks ansing from insurance contracts

IFRIC 11, IFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transactions

IFRIC 11 provides guidance on whether share-based transactions involving treasury shares
or involving Group entiies (for instance, options over a parent's shares) should be
accounted for as equity-settled or cash-settled share-based payment transactions This
interpretation does not have any impact on the Group's financial statements

= Interpretations to published accounting standards that are effective in 2007 but not relevant
for the Group's operations

IFRIC 7, Applying the Restatement Approach under IAS 29, Fmnancial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies

IFRIC 8, Scope of IFRS 2

IFRIC 9, Reassessment of Embedded Derivalives

IFRIC 10, Interim Financial Reporting and impairment

b) Recently 1ssued accounting pronouncements

There are a number of accounting developments relevant tc the Group's future financial
reporting which are listed below
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Accounting Policies continued

United Kingdom Listing Autharity disclosure rules

The Group will take advaniage of a fransitional prowvision whereby the Group need not
disclose its half-yearly financial report in accordance with DTR 4 2 untit 1 January 2015 as it
1s an 1ssuer of debt securities which were admitted to the official hst before 1 January 2005
pursuant to Chapter 23 of the Listing Rules

Recently published accounting standards that are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group

IFRS 8, Operating Segrments which replaces IAS 14 Segment Reporting

IFRS 8 introduces more detailed analysis of operating segments but will have no impact on
the results or the earnings per share The new standard requires segmental information to
be presented on the same basis as internal reports that are regularly reviewed by senior
management in order to allocate resources and monitor performance IFRS 8 i1s effective
for accounting periods beginning 1 January 2008, subject to endorsement by the EU

IAS 23 (Amendment), Borrowing Costs

This amendment removes the option of immediately recogrising as an expense borrowing
costs that relate to assets that take a substantial period of time to get ready for use or sale
This 1s not expected to have any impact on the Group's financial statements The
amendment to JIAS 23 is effective for accounting penods beginning 1 January 2009, subject
to endorsement by the EU

IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements

This revised standard will result in presentational changes, such as a mandatory statement
of comprehensive Income, and standardisation of accounting termmnology used to describe
the financial statements This 1s not expected to have any impact on the Group's result or
earnings per share The changes are effective for accounting periods beginning 1 January
2009, subject to endorsement by the EU

IFRS 3, Business Combinations, and amendment to IAS 27, Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements

This revised standard changes existing accounting practice in the treatment and
presentation of minonty nterests (to be renamed non controlling interests), and in the
treatment of consideration in business combinations Currently, the consideration for a
business comhbination may include costs of acquisiton and movements in contingent
consideration The revised standard requires costs to be expensed (rather than included in
goodwill) and contingent consideration to be measured at farr value at the acquisition date
(rather than bemng adjusted against goodwill should the amount change) The new
standards will be apphed prospectively and so only affect future periods after adoption
which 1s effective for accounting penods beginning 1 July 2009, subject to endorsement by
the EU

Insurance Confracts (IFRS Phase i) and Solvency
The Group will be affected by these two long-term projects through its insurance
substdiaries

= IFRS Phase Il 15 intended to address accounting for insurance contracts and I1s based
around a framework of three buillding blocks to measure insurance habiltties {best
estimate of future cash flows, discounted o reflect the time value of money, with
margins for bearing risk and providing other services) The IASB has begun to analyse
the responses to its Discussion Paper and does not expect to 1ssue an Exposure Draft
before 2009 and a final standard before 2010

= Solvency Il 1s a European inthiative to address regulatory reporting and incorporates its
own requirement for measuring insurance habiities Its primary objective s to
strengthen policyholder protection by aligning capital requirements more closely with the
nsk profile of the entity Assets and liabilities will be valued on an ‘econormic’ market-
consistent basis it 1s currently undergoing field testing and 15 likely to require full
adoption arcund the same time, If not before, IFRS Phase |
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Accounting Policies continued

i

m

v

* Interpretations to published accounting standards that are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group

IFRIC 14, IAS 19 — The hmut on a defined benefit assef, Minimum Funding Requirements
and their interachion

IFRIC 14 provides guidance on assessing the irmt in IAS 19 on the amount of the surplus
that can be recognised as an asset It also explains how the pension asset or liability may
be affected by funding requirements The Group will apply IFRIC 14 from 1 January 2008,
but it is not expected to have any impact on the Group’s financial statements

» |nterpretations to published accounting standards that are not yet effective and not relevant
for the Group's operations

IFRIC 12, Service Concession Agreements
This retates to the provision of public sector services and 1s not applicable to the Group

IFRIC 13, Customer Loyally Programmes

IFRIC 13 clanfies the accounting treatment of customer loyalty incentives It 15 not
applicable to the Group as none of the Group companies operates such loyalty
programmes

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries’ assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses and cash flows Subsidianes are all
undertakings whose financial and operating policies are controlled by the Group for its benefit
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control and are de-
consolidated from the date on which control ends

The acquisition of subsidiaries 1s accounted for using the purchase method

Associates are undertakings in which the Group has significant influence but not contro! and are
accounted for by the equity method of accounting and recognised on the balance sheet at cost plus
post-acquisition movements in the net assets of the associate less allowances for imparrment
losses

Segmental reporting

Business 15 reported on by both business and geographical segments A business segment i1s a
grouping of products or services that are subject to nsks and returns that are distinct from those
applying to other segments A geographical segment groups risk and return by geographic area
The directors consider the business segment to be the pnmary reporting segment

Foreign currency translation
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the

currency of the pnmary economic environment in which the entity operates (the functional currency)

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such fransactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and habiliies denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as equities classified as availlable for sale
financral assets, are included in the fair value revaluation reserve in equity

The results and financial position of those entihes whose functional currency 1s not Sterling are
translated into Sterling as follows

a) The assets and habilities for each presented balance sheet are translated at the closing rate
ruling on the date of that balance sheet
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Accounting Policies continued

vi

b) Income and expenses for each presented income statement are translated at average rates of
exchange for the period In question This represents a reasonable approximation of the use of
exchange rates ruling on transaction dates

¢} Resulting exchange differences are taken to a separate component of equity

d) Goodwill and farr value adustments ansing from the acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as an integral part of that operation and translated to Sterling at the closing exchange
rate

Product classification

The Group i1ssues contracts that transfer insurance nsk A confract which transfers significant
insurance nisk 1s an insurance contract whether or not it also transfers financial nsk

Insurance nsk 15 transferred when an insurer agrees to compensate a policyholder if that
policyholder 1s adversely affected by a specified uncertain future event, other than a change 1n a
financial varable It 1s a matter of judgement as to whether the transfer of insurance risk is
significant In making this judgement, the Group considers the scenarnos that could give rnse to a
future loss event, the likely cost that could fall on the Group in all realisic scenarios, the extent to
which benefits are payable under the policy in the absence of a future loss event, and the premium
received by the Group for assuming the nisk

General insurance contracts - recognition and measurement

The results are determined on an annual basis whereby the incurred costs of clams, commission
and related expenses are charged against the earned proportion of premiums, net of reinsurance as
follows

a) Premums

Premiums written relate to business incepted dunng the year, together with any difference
between booked premiums for prior years and those previously accrued, and include estimates
of premuums due but not yet receivable or notified to the Group

Unearmned premiums represent the proportion of premiums written in the year that relate to
unexpired terms of policies in force at the balance shee! date, calculated on a time
apportionment basis or having regard to the incidence of risk

b) Claims incurred

Claims incurred comprise claims and related expenses paid in the year and changes in the
provisions far outstanding claims, including provisions for claims incurred but not reported
{IBNR) and related expenses, together with any adjustments to clams from previous years
Where applicable, deductions are made for salvage and other recoveries

c) Claims provisions and related reinsurance recoveries

Provision 1s made at the year-end for the estimated cost of claims incurred but not settled at the
balance sheet date, including the cost of IBNR clams to the Group The estimated cost of
claims includes expenses to be incurred in settling claims and for IBNR claims, a deduction 1s
made for the expected value of salvage and other recovernes The Group takes all reascnable
steps to ensure that it has appropriate information regarding its clams exposures However,
given the uncertainty in establishing claims provisions, 1t 15 likely that the final outcome will
prove to be different from the original hability established

The estimation of claims IBNR is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the
estimation of the cost of setting clams already notified to the Group, where more information
about the claim event 1s generally avallable |BNR clams may often not be apparent to the
insurer until many years after the event giving nse to the claims has happened Classes of
business where the IBNR proportion of the total reserve 1s high will typically display greater
variations between iniial estimates and final outcomes because of the greater degree of
difficulty of estimating these reserves Classes of business where claims are typically reported
relatively quickly after the claim event tend to display lower levels of volatiity In calculating the
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estimated cost of unpaid claims the Group uses a variety of estimation techniques, generally
based upon statistical analyses of historical expenence, which assumes that the development
pattern of the current claims will be consistent with past expenence

Allowance is made, however, for changes or uncertainties which may create distortions in the
underlying statistics or which might cause the cost of unsettled clams to increase or reduce
when compared with the cost of previously settled claims including

= changes in Group processes which might accelerate or slow down the development and/or
recording of paid or incurred claims compared with the statistics from previous penods,

» changes in the legal environment,

= the effects of inflation,

» changes in the mix of business,

« the impact of large losses, and

= movements in iIndustry benchmarks

A component of these estimation techniques I1s usually the estimation of the cost of notified but
not paid claims In estmating the cost of these, the Group has regard to the clam
circumstances as reported, any information available from loss adjusters and information on the
cost of setting claims with similar characteristics in previous periods

Large claims impacting each relevant business class are generally assessed separately, being
measured on a case by case basis or projected separately in order to allow for the possible
distortive effect of the development and incidence of these large clams

Where possible the Group adopts multiple techniques to estimate the required level of
provisions This assists in giving greater understanding of the trends inherent in the data being
projected The projections given by the vanous methodologtes also assist in setiing the range
of possible outcomes The most appropnate estimation technique 1s selected taking into
account the charactenstics of the business class and the extent of the development of each
accident year

Provisions are calculated gross of any reinsurance recovenes A separate estmate 1s made of
the amounts that will be recoverable from reinsurers based upon the gross provisions and
having due regard to collectability

= Property, aviation and accident business

Property, aviation and accident business 1s short tal, that 1s, there s not generally a
significant delay between the occurrence of the claim and the clam being reported to the
Group The costs of claims notified to the Group at the balance sheet date are estimated on
a case by case basis to reflect the individual circumstances of each clam  The ultimate
expected cost of claims i1s projected from this data by reference to statistics which show how
estimates of clams ncurred in previous periods have developed over time to reflect
changes in the underlying estimates of the cost of notified clams and late notfications
Adjustments are made 1o allow for movements in the vartables described above

= Healthcare business
Healthcare business i1s short tail  The total costs of clams paid by the Group at the balance
sheet date 1s used to project the expected total cost for clams incurred by reference to
statistics which show how the total cost of clams paid in previous penods have developed
over time

= Motor business
The estmated cost of motor clams excluding the cost of personal injury claims 1s calculated

by reference to the projected number of claims, based on statistics showing how the
number of notified claims has been developed over time, and the anticipated average cost
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Accounting Policies continued

per claim, based on histoncal levels adusted to allow for movements in the vanables
described above The personal injury element of motor claims costs ts estimated using the
same method as used jor liability clams descnbed below In addition, the estimate 1s
assessed in the context of the historical development of paid and incurred claims and the
impled loss ratios for each accident year

Liabilty and manne claims

These claims are longer tail than for those of the other classes of business described above
and so a larger element of the claims provision relates to IBNR claims Claims estimates
are denved using one or more of the following methods

1 A combination of loss ratio based estimates and an estimate based upon actual
claims expenence using a predetermined formula whereby greater weight 1s given to
actual claims experience as time passes The inihal estimate of the loss ratio, based
on the experience of previous years adjusted for factors such as premwum rate
changes and clams inflaton and on the anticipated market experience, I1s an
important assumption in this estimation techrnique In respect of hability claims, the
assessment of clams inflation and anticipated market experience 1s parhicularly
sensitive to the level of court awards and to the development of legal precedent on
matters of contract and tort

2 Using the costs of claims notified to the Company at the balance sheet date which are
estimated on a case by case basis to reflect the individual circumstances of each
claim The ultimate expected cost of claims 1s projected from this data by reference to
statistics which show how estimates of clams incurred in previous periods have
developed over time to reflect changes In the underying estimates of the cost of
notfied claims and late nofifications Adjustments are made to allow for movements
in the vanables described above

3 By spltung the total case by case cost of notified clams into three band sizes
(attntional, large and very large) The ultmate expected cost of claims in each band
15 then estimated by reference to the projected number of claims (based on statistics
showing how the number of notified claims has been developed over time) and the
anticipated average final cost of notified and IBNR claims (based on historical levels
adjusted to allow for movements in the vanables described above)

The hability class of business 1s also exposed to the potential emergence of new types of
latent claims but no allowance 1s included until evidence of the existence of such claims 1s
received by the Group

Disease-related and pollution claims

The estimation of the provisions for the ultimate cost of clams for asbestos and
environmental pollution s subject to a range of uncertainties that 1s generally greater than
those encountered for other classes of business As a result it 1s not possible to estimate
the future development of asbestos and environmental claims with the same degree of
reliabiity as with other types of claims, particularly in periods when theones of iaw are in
flux Consequently, traditional techniques for estmating claims provisions cannot wholly be
relied upen and the Group employs specialised techniques to determine provisions using
the extensive knowledge of both internal asbestos and environmental pollution experts and
external legal and professional advisors Factors contnibuting to this higher degree of
uncertainty include

= Plaintffs’ expanding theornies of habiity, compounded by inconsistent court decisions
and judicial interpretations

» A few large claims, accompanied by a very large number of small clarns or claims
made with no subsequent payment, often dnven by intensive advertising by fawyers
seeking clamants
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vii

d)

e)

* The tendency for speculative, inflated and/or unsupported claims to be made to
insurers, with the aim of secunng a settlement on advantageous terms

*» The long delay in reporting claims and exposures, since the onset of illness and
disability ansing from exposure to harmful conditions, may only become apparent many
years later (for example, cases of mesothelioma can have a latent period of up to 40
years)

* Inadequate development patterns

*  Difficult i1ssues of allocation of responsibility among potentially responsible parties and
Iinsurers

= Complex technical issues that may give nse to delays in notfication ansing from
unresolved legal 1ssues on policy coverage and the identity of the insured

=  The tendency for social trends and factors to influence jury verdicts

= Developments pertaining to the Group’s ability to recover reinsurance for claims of this
nature

. Reinsurance recovenes

Reinsurance recovenes n respect of estimated IBNR claims are assumed to be consistent
with the historical pattern of such recoveries, adjusted to reflect changes in the nature and
extent of the Group’s reinsurance programme over time An assessment is also made of
the recoverability of reinsurance recovenes having regard to market data on the financial
strength of each of the reinsurance companies

Salvage and subrogafion

Estimated recoveries in respect of notified claims are included within other recevables

Deferred acquisittion expenses

Commission and other acquisition expenses relating to unearned premiums are deferred and
charged in the accounting penads in which those premiums are earned

Unexpired risks

Provision 1s made for unexpred nsks when, after taking account of investment income on
insurance funds, it 1s anticipated that unearned premiums, net of any associated deferred
acquisition costs, will be insufficient to meet the future claims and expenses of business in force
at the end of the year Classes of business which the directors consider are managed together
are aggregated for this purpose The future claims are calculated having regard to events that
have occurred pricr to the balance sheet date

Long-term insurance contracts - recognition and measurement

This accounting policy 1s included for comparative purposes only as there 15 no company
undertaking long-term business in the Group following the Part VIl transfer and sale of the business
of PPP lifetime care plc on 1 January 2007

a)

b)

Prermum income

All premiums, including remsurance premiums, other than those in respect of unit-linked
policies, are accounted for when due Premiums in respect of unit-linked policies are accounted
for in the same period as the policy liabilitties, resulting from those premiums, are created

Claims and surrenders

Claims incurred compnse clams and related expenses charged in the year together with the
change in provision for outstanding claims and therr related expenses Death or cntical illness
claims, other than those n respect of unit inked policies, are accounted for in the perniod of
notification
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) 4

Those In respect of unit-linked business are accounted for in the period that the policy ceases to
hold units in the fund Matunty claims are recognised on the date the policy matures and
reqular healthcare claims from the due date of the relevant payment Surrenders and medical
insurance claims are accounted for when paid

Provision for claims notified but not yet admitted 1s held within the prowvision for leng-term
Insurance contract iabilities

c) Prowsion for fong-term mnsurance contract iabilities
The provision for long-term insurance contract liabihities 1s computed by a Fellow of the Institute
of Actuaries, on the basis of recognised actuanal methods with due regard to the actuanal
principles set out in Council Directive 2002/83/EC
For non-profit business, in general, a discounted cash flow method 1s employed using a multiple
state model This involves estimating the number of persons in each state (e g healthy,
disabled or deceased) using transition rates denved from industry or the Group’s expenence
data
For unit-inked business the technical provision for inked lhabilities 1s determined from the value
of assets heid to provide hnked benefits to policyholders Additional technical provisions arising
from linked contracts are held within the provision for long-term insurance contract habilities,
and include an allowance for any excess of future costs over policy charges

Intangible assets

a) Goodwil!
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business acquisition over the net farr value of
the Group's share of identfiable assets and habilities at the acquisition date and intially
capitalised in the balance sheet at cost and i1s subsequently recognised at cost less
accumulated impairment losses Goodwill 15 reviewed for imparrment annually and, if there 1s
evidence of imparrment, the recoverable amount s calculated An imparment charge s
recogrused If the recoverable amount I1s less than the carrying value

b} Computer software
Costs associated with major software developments are capitalised where such expenditure Is
expected to produce future economic benefits and can be rehably measured The asset 1s
amortised on the straight line basis over its anticipated useful life, subject to a maximum penod
of 5 years

¢} Comrmssion advances
Commission advanced to intermedianes in anticipation of the introduction of new business 1s
imhally recogrised at cost and amortised over the period for which it 1s expected that benefit will
be received It 1s reviewed for impairment on a regular basis

d) Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets can anse from the fair valuation of assets acquired in business
combinations and also from the separate purchase of books of business In both cases, the
asset 1s amortised over the anticipated useful Iife and i1s reviewed for impairment on a regular
basis

Property, plant and equipment

a)

Property

This consists principally of properties occupled by the Group and i1s stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and an allowance for impairment where appropriate Bulldings are
depreciated using the straight ine method on the basis of their expected useful lives
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X

Xt

b) Piant and equipment
This consists principally of computer hardware, fixtures and fitings Assets are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and, where appropnate, an allowance for imparment These
assets are depreciated using the straight ine method over peniods not exceeding their expected
useful lives after taking into account the estimated residual value

investment property

Investment property 1s freehold property which 1s held for the pnmary purpose of rental yield, capital
appreciation or both and 1s not occupted by a Group company Investment properhies are accounted
for on the same basis as Group occupied properties

Where there 1s an unrealised loss over 15%, an impairment I1s recognised as the difference between
the net book value of the investment property and the far value of the asset based on an
independent valuation

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified on initiat recognition into the following categones

Financial assets at farr value through mcome
Availabie for sale financial assets
Held to maturity financial assets

Loans and receivables

The classification depends on the purpose for which the asset was acquired or the manner in which
it onginated and 1s reviewed at each reporting date

a)

b)

c)

d)

Fair value through income

Financial assets are classified as fair value through income in those instances where the far
value of the asset determines the value of iabilities ansing under insurance contracts and to do
aotherwise would result in an accounting mismatch They are initially measured at cost On
subsequent measurement, assets are stated at farr value with movements taken through the
inceme statement

Avarlable for sale

Avallable for sale financial assets are non-denvative financial assets which are either
specifically designated as available for sale or which are not classified as any of the other
categonies They are mitially stated at cost including transaction costs directly attnbutable to
their acquisiton On subsequent measurement, assets are stated at fair value with movements
taken directly to equity On disposal or impairment, fair value adjustments accumulated in equity
are transferred to the income statement

Held to maturity

Held to maturity financial assets are non-denvattve financial assets relating to investments in
related parties which are not quoted in an active market and not designated, on inital
recognition, as availlable for sale They are intally stated at cost including transaction costs
directly attnbutable to ther acquisiton On subsequent measurement, assets are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method with movements taken to the income
statement

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
which are not quoted in an active market and which are not designated, on imitial recognstion, as
avallable for sale They are inihally stated at cost including transaction costs directly attnibutable
to their acquisition On subsequent measurement, assets are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method
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e)

General

A financial asset 1s recognised on the date on which the Group enters into a commitment to buy
or sell the asset — the trade date Investments are de-recognised when the Group ceases to
have the nght to receive cash flows ansing from the investment or it has been transferred
together with substantially alt nsks and rewards of ownership

The Group applies the IAS 39 far value hierarchy Fair values of financial assets traded on
active markets are determined using quoted market prices when avallable A financial
instrument 1s regarded as quoted 1n an active market If quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency
and those prices represent actual and regularly occurning market transactions on an arm’s
length basis In other cases, the Group uses recognised valuation techniques to determine
market value These include pricing models, use of discounted cash flow data and, where
available, evidence of arm’s length fransactions in similar assets

Impairment of assets

a} Available for sale financal assets

b)

c)

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there 15 objective evidence that the
value of an availlable for sale financial asset has been impawred In the case of equity
instruments, this includes a review as lo whether there has been a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the asset below its cost  Where such evidence exists, the cumulative
loss 15 removed from equity and charged to the income statement The cumulative loss s
calculated as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment previously recognised in the income statement An impairrment loss of an equity
nstrument 1s not reversed An impairment loss on a debt instrument 15 reversed through the
ncome statement If the farr value of the instrument increases in a subsequent period and such
tncrease can objectively be related to an event which occurred after the imparrment loss was
onginally recognised

Financral assetls camed af amortised cost

The Group assesses al each balance sheet date whether there 1s objective evidence that the
value of an asset has been impaired If it 1s determined that no objective evidence exists of the
impairment of an individual asset then that asset 1s included in a group of financial assets with
stmilar credit nsk charactenstics and the group Is then assessed coflectively for imparment
Where evidence of a loss 1s found to exst, the loss 1s calculated as the difference between the
asset's carrying value and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
asset's ongmal effective interest rate  An allowance account is used to adjust the carrying value
of the asset and the loss I1s included in the Income statement

Impairment losses are adjusted in a subsequent accounting penod if any reduction in the loss
can objectively be related to an event which occurred after the imparment loss was originally
recognised Any such reduction 1s reflected by adjusting the allowance account and i1s included
In the Income statement

Non-financial assets

Assets which are deemed to have an indefinite useful life are not amortised but are assessed
annually for impairment

Derivative financial instruments

Dernvative financial instruments are used for mitigating nsk and include futures, forward foreign
exchange contracts, credit default swaps and currency swaps They are classified as available for
sale Denvatives are mitially recognised at farr value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at therr fair value If the fair value 1s positive they
are carried as assets, otherwise as habities Farr values are obtained from quoted market prices in
active markets and valuation technigues including discounted cash flow models and options pricing
models which have certain inputs not based on observable market data
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Changes in the farr value of denvative mstruments are recognised immediately in the income
staternent No adjustment 1s made to the classification of exishing investments to reflect the effect of
the future settlement of these transactions

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash compnses cash in hand, demand deposits with banks and bank overdrafts Cash equivalents
are highly iquid investments with criginal maturities of three months or less and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of a change in value

Share capital

Shares are treated as equity when the instruments incur no obligation on the Company to transfer
cash or any other asset to the holder Incremental costs directly attributable to the 1ssue of equity
instruments are deducted from equity Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of equity
instruments used in whole or part as consideration for the acquisition of a business are included n
the acquisiion cost of that business

Borrowings

Borrowings are nitially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs They are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, with movements included in the
income statement

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilihes are only offset when a legally enforceable nght to offset exists and
where there 1s either an intention to settle on a net basis or it 1s intended {o realise the asset and
settle the hability simultaneously

Taxation

Taxation charged or credited in the income statement 1s based on profits determined in accordance
with relevant taxation legislation, adjusted by movements in provisions relating to pnor years UK
tax in respect of profits generated by non-UK subsidiaries 1s recognised in the income statement in
the penod for which the profits anise except where the Group 1s able to control the remittance of
earnings and it 1s probable that no such remittance 1s expected in the foreseeable future, in which
case UK tax s provided on dividends received Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations i1s subject to interpretation
and establishes provisions where appropnate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the
tax authonties

Deferred tax 1s provided in full using the hability method on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and llabitities and the values at which those assets and liabiites are carned
in the Group financial statements Deferred tax 1s calculated by reference to tax rates and tax
legislation that 1s in force or has been substantially enacted at the balance sheet date and which 1s
expected to apply when the deferred tax asset or hability crystallises

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it 1s expected that fulure taxable profits
will become available against which the temporary differences can be utiised

Employee benefits

a} Pension obhgations

Contributions to defined caontnibuton schemes are charged to the income statement as they
become payable under the rules for the particutar scheme

Staff engaged in the Group’'s activites, excluding staff of AXA Ireland, which has its own
pension scheme, are members of the AXA UK Group Pension Scheme which embraces a
number of companies in the AXA UK Group This Scheme has both defined benefit and defined
contribution sections However, there 1s no agreement between the participants in the Scheme
as to how the net defined benefit costs should be allocated between them As allowed by IAS
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D)

d)

19 the Group therefore treats its contributions to the defined benefit sections as if they were
defined contribution arrangements

For other defined benefit plans the Group recognises a hiability being the present value of the
defined benefit cbligation less the fair value of plan assels at balance sheet date The defined
benefit obligation is calculated annually by qualified actuaries using the projected unit credit
method The discount rate used to determine the present vatue of the defined benefit obligation
is referenced to the current yield of high quality corporate bonds of an appropnate currency and
term to match the liabiliies

For defined benefit plans, other than the AXA UK Group Pension Scheme, the Group
recognises the following charges or credits in the income statement

=  Current service cost

» Past service cost

» Interest cost

= Impact of any curtailments or settlements

= Expected return on scheme assets, where applicable

The current service cost represents the current value of addihonal benefits accrued to
employees dunng the period Past service costs can also anse where additional benefits are
granted These costs are recognised in the income statement on a straight hne basis over the
penod remaining untit such benefits vest Past service costs which have already vested are
recognised immediately

The nterest cost relates to the increase in the present value of the defined benefit obligation,
which anses because the benefits are one penod closer to settiement, and 1s calculated using
the discount rate at the beginning of the year

Where there are curfailments or settlements during the year the changes anstng in the present
value of defined benefit obhgations and fair value of scheme assets are recorded in the income
statement

The expected return on the scheme assets Is calculated using the average rate of return, at the
beginning of the period, expected on the scheme's assets over the remaining life of the related
obligations

Actuanal gains and losses ansing from experience adjustments and changes in actuanal
assumptions are recognised as a separate component of equity through the statement of
recognised iIncome and expense

Other post-retirement obligations

Post-retirement healthcare benefits are provided to retired ex-employees by one Group
subsidiary The lability 1s valued annually by an independent qualified actuary and accounted
for as a defined benefit plan

Actuanal gains and losses ansing from changes in actuanal assumptions are recognised as a
separate component of equity through the statement of recognised income and expense
Termunation benefits

Termination benefits anse on termination of employment before the normal retirement date
The Group recognises the cost of providing these benefits when it 1s either contractually
committed to ther provision or they relate to the termination of employment of current
employees In accordance with a formal plan from which the Group cannot realistically withdraw

Profit sharing and bonuses

Employees benefit from profit sharing arrangements based on a formula which has regard to
both personat performance and profitability of the applicable AXA Group companies The
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Group recognises a liability for the cost of profit shanng and bonuses when contractually obliged
to do so

Provisions

The Group recognises a provision when 1t has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of a past event, it 15 probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle that obligation,
and the obhgation can be reliably estimated

Leases

Leases are classified as operating leases where a significant proportion of the nisks and rewards of
ownership of the asset concerned are retained by the lessor Payments made under operating
leases, less any incentives received from the lessor, are charged to the income statement on a
straight line basis over the lease term

Dividend distributions

Dividend distnbutions are recognised as a tabiity when they have been approved by the Company’s
shareholders Intenm dividends are recognised in the financial statements when paid

XX Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value received for services rendered and 1s recognised as follows

a) Services

The Group receives commssion from other insurers where insurance 1s offered by the Group in
support of its own policies but 1s underwritten elsewhere Such commission 1s credited to the
income statement when 1t becomes due

b) Interest income

Interest income on assets not classified as farr value through income 1s recognised In the
income statement using the effective interest method

¢) Interest charges made to policyholders

Other operating income Includes charges made to policyholders under the Consumer Credit Act
where premiums are paid by instalments The income I1s recognised in the income statement as
it1s earned

d) Dwmidend income

Dvidend income on available for sale assets 1s recognised when the nght to receive payment is
estabhshed
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Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements in Applying
Accounting Policies

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and habilities
within the next financial year Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and based on
histoncal experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances

The ultimate hability arising from claims made under non-life insurance contracts

The estimation of the ultimate hability ansing from claims made under insurance contracts 1s the Group’s
most cntical accounting estimate There are several sources of uncertainly that need te be considered In
the estimate of the hability that the Group will ultimately pay for such clams Detalls of the measures
adopted in measuning these liablities are provided 1n accounting policies section VI ¢ on page 17 Detaills
on the process used to decide on assumptions for non-hfe Insurance contracts and sensitvity analyses
can be found in note 30 to the financial statements
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Management of Risks

Financial nsk management objectives and policies

The Group 1s exposed to financial risk through the inherent uncertainty in undertaking insurance business
affecting its financial assets and lhabiies The most important components of this nsk are market
(including interest rate and pnice nisks), credit and quidity risks

The Group s part of the AXA UK Group which has established a group-wide financial risk management
framework and associated set of policies These are designed to ensure that financial nsks are
adequately controlled and monitored through nsk and other committees advising the Group Chief
Executive and individual business umt Chief Executives A dedicated Financial Risk Management
function supports the individual husiness units by ensunng that a full understanding and control of financial
risks 1s iIncorporated into management decision-making and procedures

Financial nsks are considered from both a shareholder and a policyholder perspective with the adoption of
appropriate nsk policies to cover different situations, such as insurance contracts, where the principal
techrnique 15 to match assets to habiliies, and non-investment credit nsk The Group does not use hedge
accounting

The Group has not changed the processes used to manage its nisks fromn previous penods The notes
below explain how financial risks are managed

Market risk

Market nsk can be defined as the nsk that movements in market factors (such as pricing of equities or
bonds), nterest rates and currency rates impact adversely the value of, or income from, the financial
assets Also, to the extent that claims inflation 1s correlated to interest rates, labilties to policyholders are
exposed to interest rate nsk

For an insurance group, market nsk appetite 1s required to reflect the aim of retaiming prudent margins to
avoid insolvency whilst balancing the desire to optimise mmvestment performance In order to control
market risk, assets are chosen where relevant to match a range of underlying hability charactenstics such
as theirr mean duration, inflation and currency factors

The Investment Committee of AXA UK plc 1s responsible for the strategy of investing assets of the AXA
UK Group companies by setting investment guidelines The Committee defines and documents the range
of strategic asset aliocation by class of asset taking into account the interaction between assets and
habiites The Committee also defines concentration imits  Together, these controls are monitored
monthly for each portfolio to help control the impact of market nisks on the portfolio

Prior to 1 January 2007 when the Group transferred its long-term insurance business, there were
previously non-profit habilities spiit between fixed and index-linked amounts The term distribution of fixed
interest assets was closely matched with the liabiities through investment strategy, and for unit-lnked
business the Group matched all the assets on which unit pnices and therefore policyholder lrabilities were
based with assets in the portfolio

a) Interest rate

The farr value of debt secunities 15 exposed to future interest rate fluctuations Included in debt
secunties 15 £707m (2006 £564m) in respect of vanable rate debentures Debt securities with fixed
interest rates are exposed to far value interest rate nsk but not cash flow interest rate nsk Debt
secunties with vanable interest rates are exposed to cash flow interest rate nsk but not fair value
interest rate nsk

2007 2006
Debt securities 1% to 4% > 4% Total 1% to 4% > 4% Total
Debt securities £m 612 3,097 3,709 551 3,642 4,193
Interest rate - average 32% 57% 5.2% 29% 54% 51%
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2007 2006 -
Equity analysis by industry 1 £m ) £m %
Financial institutions 122 20.3% 141 23 0%
Consumer 90 15.0% 127 20 7%
Energy 49 8.1% 54 8 8%
Manufacturing & Pharmaceuticals 18 3.0% 35 57%
Utiities k13 6.3% 49 8 0%
Basic materals 43 7.2% 36 58%
Technology & Telecommunications 44 7.3% 57 9 3%
Others 197 32 8% 116 18 7%
Total 601 100 0% 615 100 0%

1 tncludes mutual funds

2007 2006
Debt securities analysis by industry £m % £m %
Financial institutions 1,674 45.1% 1,793 42 8%
Manufactunng & Pharmaceuticals 14 0.4%: 16 04%
Utihities 40 1.1% 63 15%
Technology & Telecommunications 143 3.9% 151 36%
Government secunties 1,515 40.9% 1,950 46 5%
Others 323 8.6% 220 52%
Total 3,709 100.0% 4,193 100 0%

b)

c)

The sensitivity analysis for interest rate nsk illustrates how changes in the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates at the
reporting date An increase of 100 basis points in interest yields would result in additional profit for the
penod of £2m (2006 £2m) plus unrealised losses in the consolidated statement of recognised income
and expense of £142m (2006 £146m) A decrease of 100 basis points in interest yields would result
in additionat loss for the period of £2m (2006 £2m) plus unreahksed gains In the consolidated
staternent of recogmised income and expense of £154m (2006 £160m)

Equuty price risk

Listed equity secunties represent 98% (2006 98%) of total equity investments If the relevant market
indices had increased/decreased by 10%, with all other vanables constant, and all the Group's equity
investments moving according to the historicat correlation index, the profit for the year would
increase/decrease by £12m (2006 £25mj), and unrealised gains recorded through the consolidated
statement of recognised income and expense would increase/decrease by £34m (2006 £45m)

Currency risk

The Group I1s exposed to currency nsk in respect of portfollos denominated in other currencies,
principally the US dollar and Euro  Mitigation of this nisk i1s partly achieved by matching the habilties
with assets 1n the same currency The Euro investments shown in the tables below pnincipally relate to
financral assets held by the Group's subsidiary undertaking in Iretand At 31 December 2007, If the
pound had weakened/strengthened by 1%, with all other vanables constant, the profit before tax for
the year would have been £4m (2006 £5m)} lower/higher
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Management of Risks continued

2007 2006 N
Currency analysis of equity 1 £m % £m %
uso 21 3.5% 45 7 3%
JYP 3 0.5% 8 13%
GBP 445 74.0% 421 68 5%
AUD 1 0.2% 2 03%
EURO 127 211% 131 21 3%
Others 4 07% 8 13%
Total 601 100 0% 615 100 0%

1 Includes mutual funds
2007 B L 2006

Currency analysis of debt securities £m % £m %o
usD 96 2.6% 77 18%
GBP 2,680 72.3% 3,146 75 0%
EUROC 909 24.5% 959 22 9%
Others 24 0.6% 11 03%
Total 3,709 100.0% 4,193 100 0%

Capital management

The Group's UK and Insh insurance operations are regulated by the Financal Services Authonty (FSA)
and The Irnsh Financial Services Regulatory Authonty respectively Accordingly, the Group I1s subject to
insurance solvency regulations which specify the mmnimum amount and type of capital that must be held in
addition to the insurance liabiibes The Group manages capital in accordance with these rules and has
embedded In its processes the necessary tests to ensure continuous and full complance with such
regulations Given the vanability of the many inflows and outflows which are subject to market and other
combinations of nsk, regular monitoning of hability and asset profiles 15 undertaken to establish the
implications for supporting capital requirements

The individual iInsurance companies are subject to capital adequacy requirements (which are based on EU
Directive requirements) At 31 December 2007 the total capital avalable to meet the UK Insurance
Group's adjusted solo basis Solvency | requirement 1s £804m (2006 £1,188m) which exceeds the
General Insurance Capital Requirement by 31% (2006 56%), the fall being due to increased loans to its
parent company For Ireland, after the payment of a €280m dividend to the parent company, the total
regulatory assets availlable to cover the mimimum solvency margin under Solvency | are €236m (2006
€473m) which exceed the required solvency margin of €74m (2006 €78m)

For the UK, the AXA Insurance Group Is also subject to self-assessed, rnisk-based capital requirements
under the FSA’s individual capital adequacy regime and carnes out an Individual Capital Assessment
(ICA), taking into account the vanability of these nsks, to ensure that there are sufficient assets to back the
habilities, under extreme scenarios The ICA I1s established at levels of security defined by the AXA Group
and the FSA to whom regular reports are made The Group has complied with all regulatory capital
requirements throughout the year

Insurance and reinsurance risk

The Group's insurance nsk policy outiines its objectives in carrying out insurance business, 1ts appetite for
msurance nisk and its policies for identifying, measunng, monitonng and controlling tnsurance rsk
Reinsurance 1s used to manage insurance nsk and 1s monitored through the Reinsurance Committee This
includes the effectiveness of the reinsurance programme i reducing the gross provisions whilst
considenng the non-investment credit nsks associated with reinsurance balances

The nsk under any one insurance contract 1s the possibility that the insured event occurs and the

uncertainty of the amount of the resulting clam By the very nature of an insurance contract, the risk 1s
random and therefore unpredictable
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Management of Risks continued

For a portfolio of iInsurance contracts where the theary of probability 1s applied to pricing and provisioning,
the principal nsk that the Group faces under its insurance contracts 1s that the actual clams and benefit
payments exceed the carrying amount of the insurance habilities This could occur because the frequency
or seventy of claims and henefits are greater than estimated Insurance events are random and the actual
number and amount of claims and benefits will vary from year to year from the level established using
statistical techniques

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar insurance contracts, the smaller the relative
vanability about the expected outcome will be In addition, a more diversified portfolic 1s less likely to be
affected across the board by a change in any subset of the portfolio The Group has developed its
Insurance underwrittng strategy to diversify the type of insurance nisks accepted and within each of these
categories to achieve a sufficiently large population of nsks to reduce the variability of the expected
outcome

Factors that aggravate insurance nisk include lack of nsk diversification in terms of type and amount of
nsk, geographical location and type of industry covered

With the transfer of the long-term insurance business, the risks previously associated with this business
no longer apply in respect of Iifetime care contracts previously undertaken, insurance risk referred to
fluctuations in the timing and frequency of insured events relative to the expectations of the firm at the
time of underwnting Uncertainty in the estimation of future long-term benefit payments and premiums
receipts arose from the unpredictability of long-term changes 1n overall levels or mortality and morbidity
and the vanability in contract holder behaviour  Such insurance nsk was managed through its
underwnting and reinsurance arrangements

Liquidity nisk

Liqguidity nisk ts defined as the nsk that the Group, wrrespective of solvency and profitability, may not have
sufficlent available cash (or near cash assets or funding facilities) to pay obligaticns when they fall due at
reasonable cost

Liquidity nisk could anse from ihquid asset holdings, inappropnate asset/iability matching or inexact
forecast operating hquidity requirements resulting in insufficient short-term (including ntra-day) and
longer-term hiquidity This ts contrclled via the higher level requirements of AXA UK plc for annual hquidity
reviews Including stress testing to ensure that sufficient iquidity exists Iin the business In addition, a
robust working capital management environment 1$ encouraged by ensuring there are appropnate loan
and overdraft facilities, backed up by shorter-term, regular cash flow forecasting

The tables below provide an analysis of the maturity periods of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities
bearing liquidity nsk

Less than 1-2 3-5 Over 5

1 year years years years Equities Total
2007 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Equittes and mutual funds - - - - 601 601
Debt secunties 650 364 728 1,967 - 3,709
Loans/bonds with related parties - - - 126 - 126
Deposit with credit institutions 37 - - - - 37
Total financial assets 687 364 728 2,093 601 4,473
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Management of Risks continued

Less than Over 5
1 year years Totat
2007 £m £m £m
Financial habilities
15 year suhordinated oan repayable 2016 - 100 100
Perpetual subordinated loan - 50 50
Unsecured bank loan 3 - 3
Listed unsecured 6 5/8% Company bonds repayable 2023 - 148 148
Total borrowings 3 298 301
Less than 1-2 3-5 Over 5
1 year years years years Equities Total
2006 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Equities and mutual funds - - - - 615 615
Debt secunties 534 693 945 2,021 - 4,193
Loans - - 1 5 - 6
Deposit with credit institutions 311 - - - - 311
Total financial assets 845 693 946 2,026 615 5,125
Less than Over 5
1 year years Total
2006 £m £m £m
Financial habilities
15 year subordinated loan repayable 2016 - 100 100
Perpetual subordinated loan - 50 50
Unsecured bank loan 107 - 107
Listed unsecured 6 5/8% Company bonds repayable 2023 - 148 148
Total borrowings 107 298 405
Credit nsk

Credit nsk can be defined as the risk of capital or Income loss resulting from counterparty default or 1ssuer
credit downgrades affecting financial assets

For investment related items credit nsk 1s actively accepted in anticipation of the potential returns to be
made but within closely controlled imits set and monitored by the Investment Committee of AXA UK ple
The exposure to credit nisk 15 controlled by the application of concentration imits to hmit the exposure to
any one counterparty and by restnctions on investment below certain credit ratings

Non-investment items which generate credit sk generally arise as a by-product of the Group’s Insurance
operations, such as premium debts from policyholders and intermediarnes, reinsurance balances and other
operational debts Exposure i1s controlled via different processes including the active monitoring of
premium debt, specifically

= The due diigence checks over its choice of partners,
= Controls to ensure timely invoicing and receipt of monies owed,
= Structuring policies and contracts to mitigate nisks, and
* Ensurnng loans and advances receive appropriate authonsation
The Reinsurance Committee 1s responsible for consideration and agreement of reinsurance i1ssues for

AXA UK Group companies The Committee determines and approves the annual reinsurance strategy,
with reference to insurance nisk and nsk appetite including

» Reinsurance exposures and balances with external party reinsurers,

= Complance with the credit policy applted to reinsurers, and
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Management of Risks continued

* The credit exposure of the portfolio

An analysis of credit nsk assets (debt securities) by economic exposure 1s shown in the table below

2007 2006
Ratings £m % £m %
AAA 1,815 48.8% 2,228 53 1%
AA 736 19.9% 709 16 9%
A 862 233% 1,001 23 9%
BBB 296 8 0% 250 6 0%
Not rated - 0.0% 5 01%
Total 3,709 100 0% 4,193 100 0%
The maximum exposure for the Group to credit nisk 1s shown in the table below
2007 2006
{carrying value} {carrying value)
Maximum credit nsk £m £m
Investment in financial assets 4,080 4,571
Reinsurers’ share of insurance contract habilites 164 308
Insurance and reinsurance receivables 1,079 961
Other recervables 1,077 602
Cash and cash equivalents 738 892
7,138 7,334
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Segmental information — Business segments

The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2007 are as follows

Life &
Savings Healthcare Motor  Property Liability Other Group
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Insurance revenue
Income from insurance
centracts 895 670 851 378 525 3,319
Revenue ceded to reinsurers (10) (8) {83) () {11) (121)
Net insurance revenue - 885 662 768 369 514 3,198
Underwnting result 1 54 (36) (146) 82 (55) {101}
Net investment result 2 22 93 40 109 0 354
Operating result - 76 57 (106) 191 35 253
Finance costs (21}
Loss on disposal of operations {(111)
Profit before tax 121
Income tax expense (8)
Profit for the year
attributable to equity
holders of the Company 113

Other segment items Iincluded in the income statement:
Depreciation and amortisation
expenses - 3 3 4 2 8 20

The Life & Savings segment has been discontinued in 2007 following the transfer of the PPP lifetime care
plc business to AXA Sun Life plc as disclosed in note 41

The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2006 are as follows

Life &
Savings Healthcare Motor  Property Liability Other Group
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Insurance revenue
Income from insurance
contracts 36 822 609 823 386 495 3,171
Revenue ceded to reinsurers (6) {10) (16) {81) {10) (8) (131)
Net insurance revenue 30 812 593 742 376 487 3,040
Underwriting result 1 12 53 92 24 (132) 4) 45
Net investment result 2 10 16 77 30 87 106 326
Operating result 22 69 169 54 {45) 102 37
Finance costs (209)
Profit before tax 351
Income tax expense (70)
Profit for the year
attributable to equity
holders of the Company 281

Other segment items included in the income statement:
Depreciation and amortisation
expenses - 1 2 3 2 8 16
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

Notes to tables

1 Underwriting result compnses net insurance revenues, other operating income and other operating expenses, policyholder
claims and benefits, insurance contract acquisition expenses, and marketing and administration expenses, less exchange gains

and losses, and non-insurance related mcome and expenses

2 Netmvestment result compnses investment ncome, net realised gains on available for sale financial asset investments, net fair
value gains and losses on assets at far value through income and expenses, and cost of asset management services, plus
exchange gans and losses, and non-insurance related income and expenses

The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2007 and capital expenditure for the year then ended

are as follows

Life &

Savings Healthcare Motor  Property Liability Other Group

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Remnsurance assets 3 44 46 39 32 164
Other assets 783 2,257 1,204 2,045 2,023 8,312
Total assets - 786 2,301 1,250 2,084 2,055 8,476
Insurance habilities 519 1,827 931 1,734 558 5,569
Other habilities 159 166 116 {10) 607 1,038
Total habilities - 678 1,993 1,047 1,724 1,165 6,607
Capital expenditure - 36 5 6 3 3 53

The segment assets and habiities at 31 December 2006 and capital expenditure for the year then ended

are as follows

Life &

Savings Healthcare Motor  Property Liabllity Other Group

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Reinsurance assets 10 9 56 58 37 38 308
Other assets 311 672 2,149 1,168 2,187 1,836 8,323
Total assets 421 681 2,205 1,226 2,224 1,874 8,631
Insurance habilities 391 461 1,742 863 1,789 511 5,757
Other labilites 30 124 169 169 53 526 1,071
Total liabilities 421 585 1,911 1,032 1,842 1,037 6,828
Capital expenditure - 17 4 5 3 7 36

Segmental information — Geographical segments

The Group's business segments are managed as a single group operating in the following main

geographical areas

2007 2006
Income from Insurance contracts £m £m
UK 2,882 2,725
Repubilic of Ireland 316 315
Total income from insurance contracts 3,198 3,040
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

2007 2006
Total assets £m £m
UK 6,827 7,117
Republic of Ireland 1,649 1,487
Other - 27
Total assets 8,476 8,631
2007 2006
Capital expenditure £m £m
UK 47 32
Republic of Ireland 3 2
Other 3 2
Total capital expenditure 53 36
3 Net premium revenue
2007 2006
£m £m
Long-term insurance contracts - 36
Short-term insurance contracts
- premium receivables 3,433 3,174
- change in unearned premium provision {114) (39}
Premium revenue ansing from contracts 1ssued 3,319 3,171
Long-term remsurance contracts - (6}
Short-term reinsurance contracts
- premium payables {116) (128)
- change In unearned premium provision {5) 3
Premium revenue ceded to reinsurers on insurance
contracts i1ssued {121) (131)
Net premium revenue 3,198 3,040
4 Investment income
2007 2006
£m £m
Available for sale
- dvidend income 3 27
- Interest Income 203 193
Real estate income 2 -
Cash and cash equivalents interest income 48 45
284 265
Fair value through income
- dividend income - 1
- interest Income - 11
- 12
Total investment income 284 277
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

5 Net realised gains on available for sale financial assets

2007 2006
£m £m
Realised gains/(losses) on financial assets
- debt secunties 29 (2
- equities 59 49
Impairment of financial assets
- release 19 26
- allowance {42) (7)
Other realised gams/{losses) 1 (3)
Total net realised gains on available for sale financial assets 66 56
6 Net fair value losses on assets at fair value through income
2007 2006
£m £m
Net fair value losses on financial assets at fair value
through income - 2

Total unrealsed losses on investments which arose in the period were £mil (2006 £5m), due to the
transfer of the PPP lifetime care plc business to AXA Sun Life plc as disclosed in note 41

7 Other operating income

2007 2006

£m £m

Other income from non-insurance business 60 42
Recharge of expenses fo immediate parent company 39 34
Recharge of expenses to fellow subsidiary undertakings 50 44
Other operating income 149 120

8 Other operating expenses

2007 2006

£m £m

Other expenses from non-insurance business 5 10
Foreign exchange losses 6 9
Expenses incurred by Service Company 89 78
Other operating expenses 100 97
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

9 Policyholder claims and benefits

2007 2006
£m £m
Insurance claims and loss adjustment expenses
Gross claims paid 2122 1,908
Gross changes in insurance contract habilities for clams 17 42
Change in long-term insurance contract rabiities - (43)
Change in unexpired nisks provision (3) 3
2,136 1,810
Insurance claims and loss adjustment expenses recoverable
Remnsurers' share of
clams paid {34) (51)
change in insurance contract habilities for clams 27 36
change n long-term insurance contract iabiities - 23
{7) 8
Net policyholder claims and benefits 2,129 1,918
10 Other expenses by destination
2007 2006
£m £m
Movement in advanced commission payments (note 18) 27 (15)
Amortisation of deferred acquisition costs {note 19) {70) 9
Costs incurred for the acquisition of insurance contracts
expensed in the year 976 868
Attnbutable to reinsurers (7) (5)
Total expenses for the acquisition of insurance contracts 926 855
2007 2006
£m £m
Marketing and administrative expenses 265 227
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 8 8
Amortisation of software development costs 9 8
Amortisation of intangible assets 2 -
Total marketing and administrative expenses 284 243

The operating lease payments recognised as an expense durnng the year were £15m (2006 £13m)

Dunng the year the Group obtained the following services from the Company's auditor and the costs

incurred are as detailed below

2007 2006
£000's £000's
Audit services
- Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of
the statutory accounts 116 100
Non-audit services
- Fees payable to the Company's auditor and i{s associates
for other services 1,210 1,409
- Other services pursuant to legislation 368 1,038
- Tax services 34 51
- Other 34 43
1762 2,641
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

Other services principally include fees relating to group and regulatory reporting, and other services
pursuant to legislation relate to the requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act

11 Employee benefit expense

2007 2006
No No

Average number of employees In the year were
-UK 6,505 6,734
- Ireland 1,004 938
- India 2,190 2,646
9,699 10,318
2007 2006
£m £m
Wages and salanes 264 244
Social secunty costs 26 24
Pension costs - defined contnbution plans 6 6
Pension costs - defined benefit plans 37 31
333 305

12 Finance costs
2007 2006
£m £m
Interest expense
- nan-bank borrowings 11 10
- unsecured company bonds 10 10
Finance costs 21 20
13 Income tax expense

2007 2006
£m £m
Current tax 60 44
Deferred tax (note 35) {52) 26
Income tax expense 8 70

¥
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

Tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the UK tax
rate applicabte to profits of the consolidated companies as follows

2007 2006
£m £m
Profit before tax 121 351
Tax at the UK rate of 30% (2006 30%) 36 105
Effects of
- tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to profits
in the respective countries {10) (14}
- iIncome not subject to tax (6) (1}
- unremitted overseas earnings (44) 20
- disposal of subsidiary undertakings 34 -
- the change in UK tax rate to 28% 2 -
- adjustments to tax charge (in respect of previous penods {4) (40)
Tax charge for the period 8 70

As the Group has overseas subsidiaries it 1s subject to income taxes in different tax junsdictions Taxation
for these Is calculated at the rates prevaiing in those junisdictions

14 Earnings per share

Basic

Basic earnings per share 1s calculated by dividing the profit atinbutable to equity holders of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue dunng the year

2007 2006
Profit attnbutable to the Company's equity holders (£m}) 113 281
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (thousands) 1,059,786 1,059,786
Basic earnings per share (pence per share) 10.66 26 52

Diluted

The Company has no dilutive potential ordinary shares and so difuted earnings per share does not differ
from the basic earnings per share

15 Dividends

20067 2006
£m £m
Interim paid - 2,000

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2007
(2006 £nil)
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

16 Property, plant and equipment

Land and Motor
buildings vehicles Equipment Total
£m £m £m £m

Cost
Balance as at 1 January 2007 61 2 24 87
Additions at cost 3 1 7 11
Disposals - (1) {12) (13)
Balance as at 31 December 2007 64 2 19 85
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 1 January 2007 18 1 13 32
Charge for the year 4 - 4 8
Disposals - - {7) (7
Balance as at 31 December 2007 22 1 10 33
Net book value as at 31 December 2007 42 1 9 52
Cost
Batance as at 1 January 2006 53 2 22 77
Additions at cost 8 1 3 12
Disposals - (1) (1) (2)
Balance as at 31 December 2006 61 2 24 87
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 1 January 2006 13 1 11 25
Charge for the year 5 - 3 8
Disposals - - (1) (1)
Balance as at 31 December 2006 18 1 13 32
Net book value as at 31 December 2006 43 1 11 55

Depreciation expense of £8m (2006 £8m) has been charged to marketing and administration expenses

The expected useful economic lives of Land and bulldings 1s the period of the lease to a maximum of 50
years, Mator vehicles I1s 4 to 5 years, and Equipment is 8 years

17 Investment properties

2007 2006
£m £m

Cost
Balance as at 1 January 54 1
Additions at cost 70 53
imparrment movement (2) 3
Disposals - (3)
Balance as at 31 December - 122 T 54
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 1 January - -
Charge for the year 1 -
Balance as at 31 December 1 -
Net book value as at 31 December 121 54
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

Subsequent to a new investment property portfclio being acquired from a fellow subsidiary undertaking,
AXA Sun Life plc, dunng November 2006, further investments have been made The properties were
valued at £108m on an open market existing use basis by CB Richard Ellis, who are external chartered
surveyors, at 31 December 2007

Goodwill and intangible assets

Software Advance Other
Goodwill development commissions intangibles Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Balance as at 1 January 2007
Cost 128 61 123 - 312
Accumulated amortisation - (37) (50) - (87)
Net book value as at 1 January 2007 128 24 73 - 225
Additions 14 13 31 15 73
Impatrment - - (17) - 17)
Disposal - transfer to fellow subsidiary - - {11) - (11
Amortisation charge - (9) {30) (2) 41
Net book value as at 31 December 2007 142 28 46 13 229
Balance as at 31 December 2007
Cost 142 74 126 15 357
Accumulated amortisation - (46) {80) (2) (128)
Net book value as at 31 December 2007 142 28 46 13 229
Balance as at 1 January 2006
Cost 114 53 81 - 248
Accumulated amortisation - (29) (23) - (52)
Net book value as at 1 January 2006 114 24 58 - 196
Additions 14 10 50 - 74
Impairment - - (8) - (8)
Disposals - (2) - - (2)
Amortisation charge - (8) 27) - (35)
Net book value as at 31 December 2006 128 24 73 - 225
Balance as at 31 December 2006
Cost 128 61 123 - 312
Accumulated amortisation - (37) (50) - (87)
Net book value as at 31 December 2006 128 24 73 - 225

a) Goodwill relates to the acquisition of the PPP healthcare group, SecureHealth and ICAS (see note
41) Based on future profit forecasts approved by management, the carrying value 1s considered to be
fully recoverable and no impairment i1s considered necessary

b) Software development is all internaily developed

¢) Advance commissions are in respect of future business and the annual impairment review resulted
mn an imparrment of £17m (2006 £8m)

d) Other intangibles anse mainly from the farr valuation of the assets acquired on acquisition together
with some new books of business acquired
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19 Deferred acquisition costs

2007 2006

£m £m

Deferred acquisition costs as at 1 January 313 322
Credit/{charge) to iIncome statement in the year 70 {9)
Acqguisition costs deferred during the year 393 315
Amortisation charged during the year {323) (323)
Deferred acquisition costs as at 31 December 383 313

20 Investments in subsidiaries
Particulars of principal subsidiary undertakings

Country of Holdings of

incorporation ordinary

or registration shares
Insurance companies
AXA Insurance plc England 100% (Parent}
AXA Insurance UK plc England 100%
The Royal Exchange Assurance England 100%
AXA General Insurance Limited England 100%
AXA PPP healthcare imited England 100%
AXA Insurance Limited Ireland 100%
Other companies
Denplan Limited England 100%
SecureHealth (Holdings) Limited England 100%
ICAS International Holdings Limited England 100%
AXA Services Limited England 100% (Parent)
AXA PPP healthcare group plc England 100% (Parent)
AXA Holdings lreland Limited Ireland 100%
Guardian Royal Exchange International (Holdings) BV Netherlands 100%

Notes

1 The country of principal operation for each of the above companies 1s the country of incorporation,
with the exception of Guardian Royal Exchange International (Holdings) BV where the company
fransacts UK-based financing and investment activities, and The Royal Exchange Assurance whose
principal countries of operation are Cyprus and Greece

2 All holdings of ordinary shares are held by a subsidiary unless stated parent as above

21 Investment in associate undertaking

2007 2006
£m £m
Balance as at 31 December - 10

As disclosed in note 41, the associate’s parent was transferred to a fellow subsidiary undertaking during
the year

Investments in associates at 31 December 2006 included goodwill of £10m
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

The Group's interest at 31 December 2006 in the ordinary shares of its pnncipal associate, which 1s
unlisted and the holding company of Layton Blackham Insurance Brokers, Is as follows

Country of Profitf  %wnterest

Name incorporation Assets Liabilites Revenues {loss) held
£m £m £m £m

lLayton Bfackham Holdings Limited UK 22 21 25 1 39%

The country shown is that of ncorporation and principal operation

22 Investment in financial assets

The Group's financial assets are summansed by measurement category in the table below

2007 2006

£m £m

Available for sale 4,310 4,507

Fair value through income - 301

Held to matunty - AXA UK plc 2017 5 75% bonds 100 -

Loans 26 6

Deposits with credit institutions 37 311

Total financial assets 4,473 5,125

2007 2006

Available for sale financial assets £m £m
Equity securnties

- hsted 386 523

- unlisted 7 11

Debt securities

- histed 3,681 3,837

- unlisted 28 75

Mutual funds - unhsted 208 61

Total available for sale financial assets 4,310 4,507

2007 2006

Financial assets at fair value through income £m Em

Equity secunties - histed - 20

Debt securities - histed - 281

Total financial assets at fair value through income - 301

The decrease in financial assets at fair value through income in 2007 relates to the transfer of the PPP
Iifetime care plc business to AXA Sun Life plc as disclosed in note 41
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23 Reinsurers’ share of insurance contract habilities

2007 2006
£m £m
Rensurers' share of provision for long-term insurance contract
habiities - 110
Reiwnsurers’ share of provision for clams outstanding and loss
adjustment expenses 144 174
144 284
Rensurers’ share of provision for unearned premiums 20 24
Reinsurers' share of insurance contract lhabilities 164 308
Settlement penod for reinsurers’ share of claims outstanding
and long-term nsurance contract habilities
Less than 12 months 14 17
Greater than 12 months 130 267
144 284

Reinsurers’ share of provision for long-term insurance contract habilities

2007 2006

£m £m

Balance as at 1 January 110 133
Reinsurers’ share of claims payments made in year - (5)
Decrease in recoverables 110 {18)
Balance as at 31 December - 110

The decrease in recoverables in 2007 relates to the transfer of the PPP lifetime care, plc business to AXA
Sun Life plc as disclosed in note 41

Reinsurers’ share of provision for claims outstanding and loss adjustment expenses

2007 2006

£m £m

Balance as at 1 January 174 217
Reinsurers' share of claims payments made n year (34) (46}
Increase In recoverables 7 10
Exchange and other movements (3) {7)
Balance as at 31 December 144 174

Reinsurers’ share of provision for unearned premiums

2007 2006

£m £m

Balance as at 1 January 24 21
Premiums written in the year 117 134
Premiums earned In the year {121) {131)
Balance as at 31 December 20 24
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Insurance and reinsurance receivables

2007 2006
£m £m
Direct msurance receivables 1,027 926
Reinsurance receivables 52 35
Total insurance and reinsurance receivables 1,079 a61
All amounts are due within one year of the balance sheet date
Other recervables
2007 2006
£m £m
Accrued interest 76 80
Prepayments and accrued income 22 22
Amounts due from ultimate parent company 2 5
Loans due frorm intermediate parent company 783 357
Other amounts due from intermediate parent company 84 10
Amounts due from fellow subsidiary undertakings 2 5
Other recevables 108 123
Total other receivables 1,077 602
No interest 1s charged on intercompany loans
All amounts are due within one year of the balance sheet date
Cash and cash equivalents
2007 2006
£m £m
Cash at bank and in hand 66 173
Short-term bank deposits 672 719
Cash and cash equivalents 738 892

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits, which have an average matunty of 19 days (2006

17 days), was 5 6% (2006 4 7%)

Cash and bank overdrafts include the following for the purposes of the cash flow statement

2007 2006
£m £m
Cash and cash equivalents 738 892
Bank overdrafts {3) (108)
735 784
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27 Ordinary share capital

2007 2006
Shares £m Shares £m
Authorised
Ordinary shares of 5 25p each 1,142,859,044 60 1,142,859,044 60
Non-cumulative redeemable preference
shares of 20 5p each 931,707,318 191 931,707,318 191
251 251
Issued and fully paid Ordinary
shares at 31 December 1,059,785,981 56 1,059,785,981 56
2007 2006
Share premium account £m £m
Balance as at 31 December 523 523
28 Reconciliation of movements in equity
Share Share Other Retained
capital premium reserves earnings Total
2007 £m £m £m £m £m
Balance as at 1 January 56 523 410 814 1,803
Profit for the year - - - 113 113
Actuanal gains on defined benefit schemes - - - 23 23
Farr value losses on available for sale
financial assets - - (123} - {123)
Tax on movements taken
directly to equity - current - - 7 - 7
- deferred - - 29 {3) 26
Exchange on revaluation of subsiciary net
assets - - 20 - 20
Balance as at 31 December 56 523 343 947 1,869
Share Share Other Retained
capltal premium reserves earnings Total
2006 £m £m £m £m £m
Balance as at 1 January 56 523 488 2,520 3,587
Profit for the year - - - 281 281
Actuarnal gains on defined benefit schemes - - - 15 15
Farr value losses on available for sale
financial assets - - (101) - (101)
Tax on movements taken
directly to equity - deferred - - 28 (2) 26
Dividend paid - - - (2,000) (2,000)
Exchange on revaluation of subsidiary net
assets - - {5) - (5)
Balance as at 31 December 56 523 410 814 1,803
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29 Other Reserves

Capital Capital
Capital redemption contnbution Revaluation Translation
reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
2007 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance as at 1 January 104 189 46 82 (11) 410
Fair value losses on avallable
for sale financial assets - - - {123) - (123}
Tax on movements taken
directly to equity - current - - - 7 7
- deferred - - - 29 - 29
Exchange on revaluation of
subsidiary net assets - - - - 20 20
Balance as at 31 December 104 189 46 {12) 16 343
Capital Capital
Capital redemption contribution Revaluation Translation
reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
2006 £m £m £m £m E£m £m
Balance as at 1 January 104 189 46 155 (6} 488
Fair value losses on avallable
for sale financtal assets - - - (101) - (101)
Tax on movements taken
directly to equity - deferred - - - 28 - 28
Exchange on revaluation of
subsidiary net assets - - - - (5) (5)
Balance as at 31 Decemher 104 189 46 82 (11) 410

The capital redemption reserve 1s non-distnbutable and was created in 1998 on the redemption of B
shares

Capital contnibutions were received in 2003 from the immediate parent, AXA UK plc

The revaluation reserve represents the movement in the financial assets as disclosed in accounting policy
Xl b

The transiation reserve represents exchange differences on the translation into Sterling of the results and
financial position of those entities whose funchional currency 15 not Sterling

30 Insurance contract habilities

2007 2006
£m £m
Provision for long-term insurance contract habilities - 39
Provision for claims outstanding and foss adjustment expenses 4,012 3,930
Provision for unearned premiums 1,557 1,433
Provision for unexpired nsks provision - 3
Total insurance contract habilities 5,569 5,757
Settlement period for claims outstanding
Less than 12 months 776 748
Greater than 12 months 3,236 3,182
4,012 3,930

48 G p'n 7007




Notes to the Financial Statements continued

Provision for long-term insurance contract liabilities

2007 2006

£m £m

Balance as at 1 January 391 434
Total claims payments made in the year . (35)
Decrease n habilities 391 (8)
Balance as at 31 December - 391

The decrease in habilities in 2007 relates to the transfer of the PPP lifetime care plc business to AXA Sun
Life ptc as disclosed In note 41

Provision for claims outstanding and loss adjustment expenses

2007 2006

£m £m

Balance as at 1 January 3,930 3,924
Total claims payments made in the year (2,122) (1,873)
Increase In habilities 2,139 1,815
Exchange and other movements 65 (36)
Balance as at 31 December 4,012 3,930

Prowvision for unearned premiums

2007 2006

£m £m

Balance as at 1 January 1,433 1,396
Premiums wnitten in the year 3,433 3.210
Premiums earned in the year {3,319) (3,171)
Exchange and other movements 10 (2)
Balance as at 31 December 1,557 1,433

General insurance contracts — assumptions, change in assumptions and sensitivity

a) Process used to decrde on assumptions

In addition to controlling upstream nsks and analysing the reinsurance strategy, the General Insurance

businesses spectfically moritor reserve risks

Reserves have to be booked for claims as they are reported These reserves are measured
individually for each file by the claims departments Additional reserves for incurred but not reported
(IBNR} claims, along with reserves for not encugh reserved (IBNER - incurred but not enough

reported) are also booked WVarious statistical and actuanal methods are used in these calculations

Calculations are initially carned out locally by the technical departments in charge, and are then

reviewed by local nsk management teams

The Group has an annuat review programme to ensure the validity and coherence of the models used

1S tn accordance with actuanal principles and accounting rules in force

The Group’s methods are based on internal and industry best practice

Actuanes In charge of assessing reserves for clams payable do not use a single method but a

selection of approaches such as

= Methods based on the development of claims {paid or incurred) using triangulation methods (e g

chain ladder and Ink ratio) for which past experience 1s applied to each loss occurrence ar

underwnting year, in order to make reserves projections until therr estimated final development
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* The average cost per claim method which applies an estimated average cost to the final number
of claims expected to be notified in each loss occurrence or underwnting year

* Methods based on claims ratos {such as the ultimate claims ratio or the additional claims ratio)
»  Hybnd methods (such as Bornhuetter-Ferguson and Cape Cod)
»  Methods based on frequency and seventy estimates

The analysis 1s segmented differently depending on product type, geographical location, distrnibution
channel, regulation and other factors in order to obtain a hamogeneous clams base and ensure an
appropriate analysis of reserves

Assumptions depend on available data relating to reported losses at the time of the estimates, as well
as regulations, clams management procedures, pricing, underwnting information and the type of
activities and claims (coverage type, attritional or major claims, recent or old occurrence} They also
depend on economic, social and environmental factors, as well as on the legislative and political
context, which are important variables in terms of reserves Assumptions are made following
discussions with clams managers, pricing actuaries, underwniters and other specialised departments
These discussions lead to the defimtion of reasonable estimate ranges

However, it must be kept in mund that estimates are based mainly on assumptions that may prove
different from subsequent experience, particularly in the event of changes in the economic
environment (e g a nse in nflation), in the legal environment (case law) and in the social environment
(class action suits), and especially If they affect the Group's main portfolios simultaneously

b) Change in assumptions
No significant changes to assumpticns were made in 2007 for the estimation of General Insurance
clarms
¢} Sensttivity analysis — claims development tables
The development of insurance liabiittes provides a measure of the Group's ability to estimate the
ulttimate value of claims and the top half of each table below tllustrates how the Group’s estimate of
total claims outstanding for each accident year has changed at successive year-ends The bottom
half of the table reconciles the cumulative claims to the amount appearing in the balance sheet An
accident-year basis Is considered to be most appropriate for the business wntten by the Group
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 Total
Accident year - Gross £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Estimate of ulimate claims costs
- at end of accident year 1,929 1,921 1,870 1,917 1,827 1,959 2,304 13,727
- one year later 1,870 1,867 1,851 1,876 1,928 1,954 - 11,346
- two years later 1,911 1,882 1,844 1,828 1,814 - - 9,279
- three years later 1,897 1,869 1,737 1,704 - - - 7,207
- four years later 1,896 1,763 1,630 - - - - 5,289
- five years later 1,822 1,719 - - - - - 3,541
- six years later 1,832 - - - - - - 1,832

Current estimate of cumulative
clams 1,832 1,719 1,630 1,704 1,814 1,954 2,304 12,957
Cumulative payments to date 1,699 1,558 1,437 1,358 1,353 1,504 1,288 10,197
Liability recognised in the
balance sheet 133 161 193 346 461 450 1,016 2,760

Liability in respect of pnor years 1,252

Total liabilty included in the

balance sheet 4,012
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2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 Total
Accident year - Net £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Estimate of ulimate claims costs
- at end of accident year 1,896 1,893 1,836 1,889 1,770 1,921 2,286 13,491
- one year later 1,830 1,836 1,816 1,846 1,880 2,136 - 11,344
- twa years later 1,878 1,848 1,813 1,775 1,765 - - 9,079
- three years later 1,865 1,837 1,708 1,657 - - - 7,067
- four years later 1,861 1,732 1,605 - - - - 5,198
- five years later 1,799 1,680 - - - - - 3,479
- sIx years later 1,800 - - - - - - 1,800
Current estimate of cumulative
clams 1,800 1,680 1,605 1,657 1,765 2,136 2,286 12,929
Cumulative payments to date 1,675 1,537 1,418 1,352 1,323 1,490 1,296 10,091
Liability recogrised in the
balance sheet 125 143 187 305 442 646 990 2,838
Ltability in respect of prior years 1,030
Liability net of reinsurance
included in the balance sheet 3,868

Life insurance contracts — assumptions, change 1n assumptions and sensitivity

Following the transfer of the PPP lifetime care plc business to AXA Sun Life plc as disclosed in note 41,
the detail previously disclosed on Iife insurance contracts 1s only relevant in respect of the 2006 position
and has therefore been curtailed from that previously reported

a) Process used to decide on assumptions

The following main economic assumptions were made

2006
%
Inflation rates:

Expenses 425
Benefits 325

Discount rates:
Regular Premium Lifetime Care Plans (nen-linked) 385
Single Premium Lifetime Care Plans (non-linked) 4 40
Regular Premium Lifetime Care Plans (index-linked) 100
Single Premium Lifetime Care Plans (index-linked) 100
Immediate Lifetrme Care Plans (non-linked) 479
Immediate Lifetime Care Plans {index-linked} 230

The assumed inflation rates were determined by considening rates denved from market prices of
index-linked secunties, with the addition of a prudent margin and an allowance for the excess of future
expense inflation over pnce inflaion Discount rates were determined having regard to the yields of
assets backing the liabilities, subject to deductions to allow for credit nsk and for prudent margins

For Lifetime Care Plans, the mortality and morbidity assumptions were based on internal tables,
derived from the company's own experience For Immediate Lifetime Care Plans the mortality
assumptions were based on the IM80 / IF80 tables, but with adjustments for each individual case
Expenence 1s monitored annually for the major products Mortality and morbidity assumptions include
margins for prudence

The provision for future expenses in determining the habihties for all types of business covered

servicing fees payable by the Group's subsidiary PPP hfetme care plc to fellow subsidiary
undertaking, AXA Sun Life Services plc under a Management Services Agreement, fees payable to
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investment managers and further amounts in respect of other expenses Assumptions were based on
recent expenence adjusted where necessary to allow for expected changes

Insurance and reinsurance habilities

2007 2006
£m £m
Direct insurance habilihes 252 225
Reinsurance liabilihes 8 22
Total insurance and reinsurance habilities 260 247
All amounts are payable within one year of the balance sheet date
Borrowings
2007 2006
£m £m
Loans from immediate parent company
15 year subordinated loan repayable 2016 100 100
Perpetual subordinated loan 50 50
Subordinated loans 150 150
Bank overdrafts 3 107
Listed unsecured 6 5/8% Company bonds repayable 2023 148 148
Total borrowings 301 405
Avallable less than one year 3 107
Available more than one year 298 298

The subordinated loans bear interest at rates of six months deposit London Inter-Bank Offered Rate plus a
margin ranging from 170 to 220 basis points They are redeemable by the lender, provided the lender has
given not less than five years’ notice in wniting to the borrower

The carrying amounts and fair value of the non-current borrowings are as follows

Carrying value Fair value
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m
Subordinated loans 150 150 150 150
Short-term borrowings 3 107 3 107
Debentures and other loans 148 148 172 172
301 405 325 429

The carrying amounts of subordinated loans and short-term borrowings approximate their fair value
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33 Provisions for other habilities and charges

Vacant
MIB space Other

provision provision provisions Total

£m £m £m £m

Balance as at 1 January 2007 26 28 21 75

Charged to iIncome statement 26 5 32 63
Released during the year - - {2} (2)
Utilised duning year (20) {10) {6) {36)

Balance as at 31 December 2007 32 23 45 100

2007 2006

£m £m

To be settled within 12 months 44 33

To be settled after 12 months 56 42

100 75

a) The MIB provision relates to the levy payable in respect of 2007 premiums and covers both the UK
Motor Insurers’ Bureau and the Motor [nsurers’ Bureau of Ireland The levy 1s assessed on 2007
premiums and information avallable from the MIB at the time Following the final assessment of the
UK 2006 provision there was an additional charge of £2 2m in 2007 {2006 £nil)

b) The vacant space provision relates to future rent expenses for leasehold properly where the
property 1s vacant or where the property I1s sublet and the rents recewable are lower than rents
payable under the terms of the headlease It 1s utitsed over the remaining periods of the leases

c) Other provisions includes provisions for liabilities ansing from the recrganisation of the business, a
levy refating to the London Metropoltan Fire Brigade and costs related to general insurance
operations Included in the latter category are an onerous contract provision following a review of an
underperformeng contract and a provision to cover a potential dispute with an agent

34 Other liabilities

2007 2006

£m £m

Accruals and deferred iIncome 160 140
Amounts due to iImmediate parent company 5 4
Social security and other tax payments 18 20
Other habiities 112 103
Total other liabilities 295 267

Estimated fair values are the amounts recorded at year-end

All amounts are payable within one year of the balance sheet date

35 Deferred income tax

Deferred tax assets and habilities are offset when there 1s a legally enforceahle nght to offset current tax
assets agamnst current tax habihhes and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal
authornity
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2007 2006

£m £m

Balance as at 1 January 80 80
Income statement credit/(charge) {note 13) 52 (26)
Tax credit to equity (nofe 28) 26 26
Exchange differences 2 -
Balance as at 31 December 160 80

All of the deferred tax assets were availlable for offset against deferred tax iiabiliies and hence the net
deferred tax asset at 31 December 2007 was £160m (2006 £80m)

The UK tax rate changed from 30% to 28% with effect from 1 Apnil 2008, consequently the deferred tax
balances have been restated at the tax rate applicable at the estimated date of reversal

No deferred tax 1s recognised on the unremitted earnings of overseas subsidiaries, unless it 1s expected
that the earnings will be remitted in the foreseeable future It has been decided that no overseas dividends
will be remitted until the law in this area 1s either changed or clanfied

The movement In deferred tax assets and habilities during the year, without taking into consideration the
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows

Deferred tax assets

Tax

losses

Retirement carned
obligations forward Total
£Em £Em £m
Balance as at 1 January 2007 15 153 168
Income statement credit/(charge) (nofe 73) (3) 24 21
Retained earnings (3) - {3)
Balance as at 31 December 2007 9 177 186

The Group ts carrying forward tax losses in a number of Group companies that will be recovered over the
next five years as expected taxable profits emerge

Deferred tax assets are recognised in respect of all tax losses and other temporary differences giving nise
to deferred tax assets because it 1s probable that these assets will be recovered

Deferred tax habilities

Unrealised Other

appreciation short-term

of Equalisation timing
investments reserve differences Total
£m £m £m £m
Balance as at 1 January 2007 8 35 45 88
Income statement {credit)/charge (nofe 13) 16 - (47) {31
Revaluation reserve (29) - - {29)
Exchange difference - - (2) {2)
Balance as at 31 December 2007 (5) 35 (4) 26
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The deferred income tax charged or (credited) to equity during the year gross of transfers to retained
earmings 1s as follows

2007 2006

£m £m

Retained earnings retirement obligations 3 2
Revaluation reserve financial assets (29) (28)
(26) (26)

Retirement benefit obhgations

AXA UK Pension Scheme

Staff engaged In the Group's activities, excluding employees of AXA Ireland which has its own pension
scheme, are members of the AXA UK Pension Scheme which embraces a number of companies in the
AXA UK Group The Scheme has both defined benefit and defined contribution sections but the Group 1s
unable accurately to identify its share of the underlying assets and habilites of the defined benefit section
Accordingly, the Group has accounted for its contribution to the defined benefit section as if it were a
defined contnbution arrangement

An independent actuanal review by Watson Wyatt of the defined benefit scheme revealed a deficit of
£306m as at 31 December 2007 (£585m as at 31 December 2006) before taking account of any tax relef
This represents a snapshot of the present cost of meeting pension obligations that will crystalise over a
period of many years The Scheme invests in a wide range of assets, including equities, which over the
long-term, are expected by the directors to produce higher returns than those underlying the assessment
of the deficit as at 31 December 2006 The AXA UK Group made additional contnbutions totalling £26m
(2006 £23m) to the Scheme, in accordance with the plan to reduce the deficit A full valuation of the
Scheme was carned out at 31 March 2006 by Watson Wyatt Although the scheme 1s being accounted for
as a defined contribution scheme, the following disclosures are required to be shown in respect of the
Scheme

The principal assumptions used by the actuanes were

2007 2006

Em £m

Discount rate 59% 51%
Expected return on plan assets 6.7% 6 7%
Future salary increases 50% 4 6%
Future pension increases 35% 31%
Inflaion assumption 3.5% 31%
Amortisation of available for sale investments 47% 26%

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows

2007 2006

£m £m

Present value of abligation as at 1 January 3,062 2,947
Service cost 38 46
Interest cost 154 137
Plan amendments - 1
Actuanal (gains)/losses {240) 36
Benefits pad (109) (105)
Present value of obligation as at 31 December 2,905 3,062
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Changes n the farr value of plan assets are'as follows

2007 2006

£m £m

Far value of plan assets as at 1 January 2,478 2,365
Expected return on plan assets 164 156
Employer contributions 50 46
Employee contnbutions 4 4
Benefits paid {109) {105)
Actuanal gains 12 12
Fair value of plan assets as at 31 December 2,599 2,478

Analysis of assets by category

2007 2006

£m £m

Equities 1,509 1,509
Debt secunities 955 826
Property 131 139
Cash 4 4
Fair value of plan assets as at 31 December 2,599 2,478

Other pension schemes

a)

b)

c)

The Group operates the AXA Unapproved Top-up Scheme which 1s a defined benefit scheme The
scheme s an unfunded arrangement and therefore no company centnbutions were paid dunng the
accounting period or are to be paid in the future However, the Group has paid the current pensions in
payment over the year of £2m The AXA Unapproved Top-up Scheme has been closed to new

members since 1999

A subsidiary of the Group offers certain healthcare benefits, on a non-contributory basis, to
substantially all employees who were employed pror to June 1999, upon retirement The expected
costs of this benefit have been assessed In accordance with the advice of an independent qualified
actuary as at 31 December 2007

The Group's subsidiary in Ireland operates a defined benefit scheme A full actuarial valuation, on
which the amounts recognised in the financial statements are based, was carned out at 31 December

2007

Full details of the AXA Unapproved Top-up Scheme, Healthcare benefit scheme and the Insh pension
scheme can be seen in the following tables

The principal assumptions used by the actuaries were

2007 2006
UK UK

Top-up Healthcare Top-up Healthcare

scheme scheme Ireland scheme scheme Ireland
Discount rate 5.9% 5.9% 5.5% 51% 51% 4 7%
Expected return on plan assets - - 6 3% - - 6 1%
Future salary increases 5.0% - 4.5% 4 6% - 4 5%
Future pension increases 3.5% - 23% 31% - 2 0%
Inflation assumption 3 5% 8.0% 23% 3I1% 8 0% 20%

Mortality tables - UK schemes
For the 2006 and 2007 actuanal review the following tables were used
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All male members - PMA92C03 -1 5 with medium cohort mortality improvements from 2006

All female members - PFA80CO03 +0 5 with medium cohort mortality improvements from 2006

Mortality tables — Ireland scheme
The following tables were used for both 2007 and 2006

Pensioners and dependants - 90% of PMA92 (C=2010) and 90% of PFAS2 (C=2010) for male and female
members respectively

For active and deferred members - 90% of PMA92 (C=2025) and 90% of PFA92 (C=2025} for matle and
female members respectively

Expected return on pian assets

There are no assets in the AXA Unapproved Top-up and Healthcare schemes

The expected return on plan assets for the pension scheme In Ireland 1s based on market expectation at
the beginning of the perod and derved by taking the weighted average of the long-term expected return
for each class of investment held by the fund The expected individual rates of return were 7 75%

{equities), 4 5% (debt secunties}, 7 0% (property) and 4 0% (cash) The comesponding 2006 expected
returns were 7 6% (equities), 4 0% (debt secunties), 7 0% (property) and 3 5% (cash)

Pensions and other post-retirement obligations

The amounts recognised In the balance sheet are as follows

UK
Top-up Healthcare
scheme scheme Ireland Total

2007 2007 2007 2007 2006

£m £m £m £m £m

Present value of funded obligations 26 12 233 271 271
Fair value of plan assets - - {219) (219) (194)
Equities - - {121} (121) (113)
Debt secunties - - (78} {78) (64)
Property - - (6) {6) {5)
Cash - - (14) (14) (12)
Net liability in the balance sheet 26 12 14 52 77

The amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows

UK
Top-up Healthcare
scheme scheme Ireland Total
2007 2007 2007 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m £m
Current service cost - - 7 7 6
Interest cost 1 1 12 14 11
Expected return on plan assets - - (13) (13) (10)
Past service cost - - 3 3 -
Employee contributions - - (2) (2) (1)
Total included within employee benefit
expenses 1 1 7 9 6
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The amounts recognised in the statement of recognised income and expense are as follows

UK
i Top-up Healthcare
scheme scheme Ireland Total
2007 2007 2007 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m £m
Actual return on assets - - - - 186
less expected return on scheme assets - - (13) {13) (10)
Actual return on assets in excess of expected - - {13) {13) 6
Experience losses on habilities - - (4) (4) (3)
Change in actuanal assumptions 2 2 36 40 12
Actuarial gains on pension
benefits 2 2 19 23 15
Changes In the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows
WK
Top-up Healthcare
scheme scheme Ireland Total
2007 2007 2007 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m £m
Present value of obligation as at 1 January 28 14 229 271 273
Exchange - - 20 20 (4)
Service cost - - 7 7 6
Interest cost 1 1 12 14 11
Plan amendment - - 3 3 -
Actuanal gains {2) (2) (32) {36) (9)
Benefits paid {1 M (6) {(8) (6)
Present value of oblhigation as at
31 December 26 12 233 271 271
Changes in the farr value of plan assets are as follows
.
Top-up Healthcare
scheme scheme treland Total
2007 2007 2007 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m £m
Fair value of plan assets as at 1 January - - 194 194 175
Exchange - - 17 17 (3)
Expected return on plan assets - - 13 13 LY
Employer contributions - - 12 12 9
Employee contributions - - 2 2 1
Benefits paid - - (6) (6) (4)
Actuanal (losses)/gains - - (13) (13) 6
Fair value of plan assets as at
31 December - - 219 219 194
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Additional information for the current annual period and previous three annual penods

2007 2006 2005 2004
£m £m £m £m
As at 31 December
Present value of funded obligations 2 271 273 210
Fair value of plan assets 219 194 175 143
Deficit 52 77 98 67
Expenence adjustments on habilities {4) (3) (10) (5)
Expenence adjustments on plan assets (13} 6 21 6
History of expenence gains and losses
UK
Top-up scheme Healthcare scheme treland
2007 2006 2007 2008 2007 2006
Difference between expected and
actual return on scheme assets
- amount - (loss)/gain £m - - - - (13) 6
- percentage of scheme assets - - - - {6 0)% 3 3%
Expenence gains and losses on
obligattons
- amount - (loss)/gain £m - (1) - 1 (4) (3)
- percentage of the present value
of the obligations 0.0% (4 6)% 00% 34% {1.8)% {12)%
Total amount recognised outside
income statement
- amount - (loss)/gain £m 2 (2) 2 1 19 16
- percentage of the present value
of the obligations 6.7% {7 2)% 20.9% 62% 82% 6 9%

Sensitivity analysis

The discount rate and the assumed mflakion rate both have a significant effect in the IFRS accounting
valuation For the schemes recognised on the balance sheet a 0 5% Iincrease in the discount rate would
reduce the present value of obligation by £30m A 0 5% increase in the inflation rate assumption would
increase the present value of obligation by £17m

The effect of an increase of one percentage point and the effect of a decrease of one percentage point in
the assumed med:cal cost trend on the following 1s set out below

1 %ncrease 1 % decrease
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m
Current service cost and interest cost of net
penodic post employment medical costs 0.2 02 0.2 01
Present value of obligation for post employment
medical costs 2.2 25 17 19

The total pension cost which has been charged to the income statement for the Group s £43m (2006
£37m) which includes £6m (2006 £6m) costs for defined contribution schemes

The contributions payable by the Group are determined by the pension scheme trustees after consulting
the scheme actuanes, and in the case of the Insh scheme after consultation with the Company
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

The estimated contributions to be paid by the Group in 2008 are £47m

Cash generated from operations

2007 2006

£m £m

Profit before tax and loss on disposal of operations 232 351

Depreciation and fixed asset write-offs 9 8

Amortisation of intangibles and impairments 58 43
Realised and unrealised investment gains {108) (61)

Amaortisation of available for sale investments 4 19

Impairment charge on available for sale investments 42 7

Change n insurance technical provisions 147 108
Change in other assets and labilities {139) (55)

Interest expense 21 20
Interest income (256) (252)
Dvidend income (30) — (29
Cash generated from operations _@)_ ___161

Related parties

AXA Insurance plc and its subsidiary undertakings paid £7m to a fellow subsidiary undertaking, GIE AXA,
under a service agreement to share costs.

AXA Services Limited recovers its costs and related expenses from other group companies During 2007
this subsidiary recharged expenses of £39m to its iImmediate parent company, AXA UK plc, and £50m to
fellow subsidiary undertakings

A loan of £30m was made by the Company to AXA UK plc

Loans of £480m were made by AXA Insurance plc to AXA UK plc and AXA UK plc repaid £100m to AXA
Insurance plc

Loans of £10m were made hy AXA PPP healthcare group plc to AXA UK plc
AXA Insurance ple subscribed for £100m of 5 75% fixed rate bonds due in 2017 issued by AXA UK ple
AXA Insurance UK plc paid commissions of £33m to related insurance intermediaries

The Group paid reinsurance premiums of £53m to fellow subsidiary undertakings, AXA Cessions and AXA
Reinsurance UK ple

The Group receved inwards treaty business premiums of £24m from AXA Cessions

Commitments

Capital commitments

There 1s no capital expenditure contracted for at the balance sheet date but not yet incurred (2006 £nil)
Operating lease commitments — where a Group company Is the lessee

The commitments relate mainly to land and buildings and are subject to rent reviews
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

The future aggregate mintmum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

Restated

2007 2006

£m £m

No later than 1 year 4 2
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 7 8
Later than 5 years 12 12
23 22

Operating lease commitments — where a Group company 15 the lessor
The commitments retate to land and buildings and are subject to rent reviews

The future aggregate mimimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

2007 2006

£m £m

No later than 1 year 6 3
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 21 10
Later than 5 years 25 13
52 26

Directors emoluments

The directors are employed and paid by companies in the AXA Group and therr directorships are held as
part of that employment No director has received any emoluments or other benefits from the Company or
from any other company in the AXA Group In respect of services to the Company

Mr N J-M D Moreau, Mr P J Hubbard, Mr P L H Maso y Guell Rivet and Mr | D Richardson were
also directors of the intermediate parent company, AXA UK plc, dunng the year and therr emoluments,
which relate to their services to the AXA Group as a whole, are disclosed in the financial statements of
that company

Acquisitions and disposals

Summary
2007 2006
£m £m

Acquisitions (Goodwill note 18)
a) ICAS International Holdings Limited 13 -
b) Ignition New Business Solutions Limited 1 -
¢) SecureHealth (Holdings) Limited - 14
14 14
Disposals (Income statement)

d) PPP lifetime care plc (124) -
e) Venture Preference Limited - -
f} Graywood Investments Limited 13 -
(111) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

2007 2006
Cash flow movements £m £m
Acquisitions
Cash consideration 29 15
Cash and cash eguivalents acquired (1) {2)
Net outflow 28 13
Disposals
Cash consideration 30 -
Cash and cash equivalents transferred (29) -
Net inflow 1 -

a) Acquisition of ICAS International Holdings Limited

On 12 October 2007 the Group’s subsidiary company, AXA PPP healthcare group plc, purchased the
entire share capital of ICAS International Holdings Limited {ICAS) for a consideration of £23m The
value of ICAS net assets acquired was £4m

ICAS s the largest Employee Assistance Programmes (well-being services such as occupational
health and crisis management) provider in the UK, second but aggressively growing in South Afnica
and has other strong positions 1n Europe The acquisition of ICAS s for investment purposes and has
had no other effect on the current year financial statements

2007

£m

Cash acquired 1
Other assets acquired 8
Total habiites acquired (9)
Net assets acquired 4
Fair value of intangible assets 6
Assets acquired 10
Consideration 23
Goodwill 13

b)

c)

For the year ended 30 April 2007, ICAS recorded a loss of £108,000
Acquisition of Ignition New Business Solutions Limited

On 19 November 2007 the Group's subsidiary, AXA Services Limited, purchased the entire share
capital of Ignition New Business Solutions Limited (lgnition NBS) for a consideration of £1m  Igrution
NBS 1s a marketing consultancy company registered in England

Completion accounts have not yet been finalised but net assets are minimal and the full consideration
1s treated as goodwill

The unaudited accounts of Ignihon NBS for the year ended 31 July 2007 showed a net asset value of
£158,000 and a profit before tax of £7,000

Acquisition of SecureHealth {Holdings) Limited in 2006

On 26 Apnl 2006 the Group's subsidiary company, AXA PPP healthcare group plc purchased the
entire share capital of SecureHealth (Holdings) Limited (SHL) for an inihial consideration of £14m plus
an additional amount of £1m for the net assets acquired

SecureHealth Limited, a subsidiary of SHL, 1s an insurance intermediary distnbuting health-related
msurances, predommanily white-labelled private medical insurance policies underwritten by a fellow
subsidiary company AXA PPP healthcare Iimited
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

tn February 2007, a further consideration of £56m was paid in relation to the purchase agreement
following the transfer of the underwniting renewal nghts to an additional book of business to AXA PPP
healthcare hmited At the same time, an intangible asset in respect of the additional business was
recognised

The SHL pre-acquisition profits, for the year ended 28 February 2006, amounted to £0 4m
SecureHeatth Limited recorded profits of £1m for the same period

2007 2006
£m £m
Cash acquired - 2
Other assets acquired - 1
Total labilities acquired - (2)
Net assets acquired - 1
Fair value of intangible assets 5
Assets acquired 5
Consideration 5 15
Goodwill - 14

d)} Transfer of PPP lifetime care plc business

On 19 December 2005 the Group’s subsidiary, AXA Insurance plc, agreed to transfer all of the policies
and associated assets and habilities in the long-term fund of PPP lifetime care plc into the long-term
fund of AXA Sun Life plc (ASL)}, a fellow subsidiary, and to transfer all the assets and labilities in the
shareholder fund of PPP Iifetime care plc into the AXA Sun Life plc shareholder fund for nil
consideration Durning March 2006 mtial Court approval was received to commence the process
under a Part VII Scheme with fina! approval for the scheme obtained in July 2006 The scheme was
implemented on 1 January 2007 and resulted in £532m of assets, including cash of £12m, and £408m
of hlabilies being transferred into ASL  With the transfer at nil consideration, this resulted in a loss to
the Group of the net asset value of £124m

Net assets of PPP Iifetime care plc as at 31 December 2006

2006

£m

investments - at fair value through income am

Investments - available for sale 98

Reinsurers' share 110

Receivables 10

Cash 12
Insurance contract habiities {391)
Provisions (2)
Other habihties (15)

Net assets 124

e} Transfer of Venture Preference Limited

On 8 January 2007, the Group's subsidiary, Venture Preference Limited (VPL), was fransferred from
AXA Insurance UK plc to AXA Advisory Holdings Limited {the new advisory and broking arm of the
Group's iImmediate parent company, AXA UK plc} This was done to ensure the structural separation
of the distnbution and underwnting business of the Group from this new broking capability The
transfer was at net asset value, funded by an increase of £10m in the Group’s loan with AXA UK plc,
and so there was neither a gain nor loss to the Group VPL already owned 38 9% of Layton Blackham
Holdings Limited, the Group’s associate undertaking (note 21}, and so the transfer removed the
associate from the Group's influence
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

f)

Disposal of Graywood Investments Limited

On 4 October 2007 the Group's subsidiary, Graywood Investments Limited, was sold to a French
fellow subsidiary, Sociéte Beaujon, for a consideration of £33m  The inihal consideration was £30m,
based on an estimated net asset value, and a further £3m was paid n respect of the final net asset
value in 2008 The net assets transferred were £20m (of which £17m was cash) resulting in a gain of
£13m Graywood Investments Limited 1s an investment company whose principal investment 1s AXA
Business Services Private Limited (ABS), an Indian company based in Bangalore and Pune ABS
provides back office services for the AXA Group worldwide and it was considered more appropriate to
position these services in the French parent group structure This was therefore achieved by selling
ABS's parent company, Graywood Investments Limited

42 Contingent labihties

a)

b)

With the approval of Financial Services Authonity certain wholly-owned UK subsidianes have entered
into a mutual guarantee whereby each company guarantees payment of ali habilites incurred by the
others 1n respect of general insurance business

A Group subsidiary, AXA Insurance UK plc, has an intra-group deed of guarantee with Swiftcover
Insurance Services Limited, a fellow subsidiary undertaking This 1s an FSA “comparable” guarantee
which 15 n leu of a professional indemnity policy AXA Insurance UK plc guarantees to pay
professional negligence claims against Swiftcover In circumstances where such claims would have
been covered under the terms of the AXA Group Professional Indemnity Cover up to an annual
aggregate of €15m for misselling claims and €8m for all other claims
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Parent Company Auditors’ Report

We have audited the financial statements of Guardian Royal Exchange plc for the year ended
31 December 2007 which comprise the Balance Sheet and the related notes These financial statements
have been prepared under the accounting policies set out theren

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance
with applicabte law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice) are set out In the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

Our responsibiity 1s to audit financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory
requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) This report, mcluding the opinion,
has been prepared for and only for the Company's members as a body in accordance with Section 235 of
the Companies Act 1985 and for no other purpose We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1s shown or into whose
hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in wnting

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and whether
the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 We
also report to you whether in our opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report 15 consistent with
the financial statements

In addition we report to you if, in our opinton, the Company has not kept proper accounting records, if we
have not received all the information and explanations we require for cur audit, or if information specified
by law regarding directors' remuneration and other transactions 1s not disclosed

We read the other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether it 1s consistent with
the audited financial statements The other information comprises only the Directors’ Report We consider
the implications for our report If we become aware of any apparent misstatements or matenal
inconsistencies with the financial statements Our responsibiities do not extend to any other information

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued
by the Auditing Practices Board An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements It also includes an assessment of the significant
eshmates and judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of
whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the Company's circumstances, consistently appled and
adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtan all the information and explanations which we
considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from maternal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregutanty or
error In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of tnformation In
the financial statements
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Parent Company Auditors’ Report continued

Opinion

In our opinion

* The financial statements give a true and fairr view, in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepled Accounting Practice, of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 December 2007,

* the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act
1985, and

+ the mformation given in the Directors’ Report ts consistent with the financial statements

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London

26 June 2008

66 CRE ple, 2007




Parent Company Balance Sheet

as at 31 December 2007

2007 2006
Note £m £m
Fixed assets
Shares in subsidiary undertakings 1 1,747 1,747
Current assets
Debtors amounts falling due within cne year 2 113 81
Cash at bank and in hand - 2
113 83
Creditors
Amounts faling due within one year 3 {621) (616)
Net current habilities {508) (533)
Total assets less current habilities 1,239 1,214
Creditors
Amounts falling due after more than one year 4 {148) (148)
Net assets 1,091 1,066
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 56 56 56
Share premium account 56 523 523
Capital redemption reserve 6 189 189
Capital contribution reserve 6 46 46
Profit and loss account 6 277 252
Total equity shareholders’ funds 6 1,091 1,066

The separate financial statements on pages 67 to 71 were approved by the Board of Directors on 26 June
2008 and were signed on its behalf by

I Robinson
Director
26 June 2008
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Parent Company Accounting Policies
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Basis of accounting

The separate financial statements of the Company are presented as required by the Companies Act
1985 and have been prepared in accordance with applicable UK accounting standards and law

The Company has not adopted Financial Reporting Standard (“FRS") 29 (Financial Instruments
Disclosures) The Company 1s exempt from this standard as it does not hold assets at farr value
and has therefore not adopted FRS 26 (Financtal Instruments Recognition and Measurement)

As permitted by section 230 of the Companies Act 1985, the Company’s income statement has not
been included in these financial statements

Investment income

Investment income consists of interest, dividends and realised gains Income from listed equities 1s
recognised when investments are quoted ex-dividend Income from government and other fixed
interest secunties, loans and deposits 1s dealt with on an accruals basis Other investment income
1s recognised when due to be received

Interest payable and expenses incurred in the management of nvestments are accounted for on an
accruals basis

Realised and unrealised investment gains and losses

Realised investment gains and losses are calculated by reference to the net sales proceeds and the
original purchase cost Unrealised gains and losses on investments represent the difference
between the valuation of the investment at the balance sheet date and their onginal cost or if they
have been previously valued, therr valuation at the last balance sheet date

Valuafion of investments

Investments in subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost unless therr value has been mparred, In
which case they are valued at their realisable value or value In use as appropnate

Investments are stated at market values, bid price for unit trusts and directors’ valuations for other
investments

Deferred tax

Provision 1s made for deferred tax liabiities, using the hability method, on all matenal tiring
differences, including revaluation gains and losses on investments recogmsed n the profit and loss
account Deferred tax 1s calculated at the rates at which it 1s expected that the tax will arise
Deferred tax 1s recogmsed in the profit and loss account for the period, except to the extent that it 1s
attnbutable to a gain or loss that 1s recogmised directly in the statement of total recognised gains and
losses Deferred tax balances are not discounted

Foretwgn currencies
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the rates ruling at the date of the
fransaction Assets and liabihties denominated in foreign currencies are translated at year-end

exchange rates Exchange gains and losses are treated as part of the investment return in the profit
and loss account
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Parent Company — Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Shares in subsidiary undertakings

2007
£m
Cost at 1 January and at 31 December 1,747
The principal subsidiary undertakings of the Company are
Country of  Holdings of
incorporation ordinary
or registration shares
Insurance companies
AXA [nsurance plc England 100% (Parent)
AXA Insurance UK plc England 100%
The Royal Exchange Assurance England 100%
AXA General Insurance Limited England 100%
AXA PPP healthcare imited England 100%
AXA Insurance Limited lreland 100%
Other companies
Denplan Limited England 100%
SecureHealth (Holdings) Limited England 100%
ICAS International Holdings Limited England 100%
AXA Services Limited England 100% (Parent)
AXA PPP healthcare group plc England 100% (Parent) ,
AXA Holdings Ireland Limited Ireland 100% |
Guardian Royal Exchange International (Holdings) BV Netherlands 100%
Notes |

1 The country of principal operation for each of the above companies is the country of incorporation, |
with the exception of Guardian Royal Exchange International (Heldings) BV where the company

transacts UK-based financing and investment activities, and The Royal Exchange Assurance whose

principal countries of operation are Cyprus and Greece

2 All holdings of ordinary shares are held by a subsidiary unless stated parent as above

3 As disclesed in note 41f to the Group financial statements, the Company's directly held subsidiary,

Grayweod Investments Limited, was sold to a fellow French subsidrary

2 Debtors
2007 2006
Amounts due from intermediate parent company 104 74 ‘
Amounts due from subsidiary undertaking 3 4 |
Amounts due from fellow subsidiary undertaking 2 -
Taxaticn 4 3
Total amounts falling due within one year 113 81
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Parent Company — Notes to the Financial Statements continued

3 Creditors - amounts falling due within one year

2007 2006
fm £m
Amounts due to intermediate parent company 16 12
Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings 601 600
Other creditors 4 4
Total amounts falling due within one year 621 616
4 Creditors — amaounts falling due after more than one year
2007 2006
£m £m
Non-bank Ioans over 5 years listed unsecured 6 5/6%
Company bonds repayable in 2023 148 148
Total amounts falling due after more than one year 148 148
5 Ordinary share capital
2007 2006
Shares £m Shares £m
Authorised
Ordinary shares of § 25p each 1,142,859,044 60 1,142,859,044 60
Non-cumulative redeemable preference
shares of 20 5p each 931,707,318 191 931,707,318 191
251 251
Issued and fully paid Ordinary
shares at 31 December 1,059,785,981 56 1,059,785,981 56
2007 2006
Share premium account £m £m
Balance as at 31 December 523 523
6 Movement in equity shareholders’ funds
Called up Share Capital Capital Profit
share premium redemption contribution and loss
capital account reserve reserve account Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance as at 1 January 2007 56 523 189 46 252 1,066
Profit for year - - - - 25 25
Balance as at 31 December 2007 56 523 189 46 277 1,091

The transfer to the profit and loss account relates prnncipally to the profit on the sale of the subsidiary
company, Graywood Investments Limited

The capital redemption reserve 15 non-distributable and was created in 1998 on the redemption of 8
shares

The capital contribution reserve represents capital contnibutions received in 2003 from its immediate
parent, AXA UK plc
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Parent Company —~ Notes to the Financial Statements continued

Capital commitments

At 31 December 2007 contracts placed for future capital expenditure nct provided in the financial
statements amounted to £nil (2006 £mil}

Ultimate parent

The Company ts a imited habiity company incorporated and domiciled in England  In the opinion of the
directors, the Company's ultimate parent and controling company 15 AXA, a company Incorporated in
France The parent undertaking of the largest and smallest group which includes the Company and for
which group financial statements are prepared 1s AXA Copies of the AXA Group financial statements can
be obtained from 23, avenue Matignon, 75008 Paris, France

Related parties

As the Company 1s a wholly-owned subsidiary it has taken advantage of the exemption granted under
FRS 8 (Related Party Disclosures) where subsidiary undertakings do not have to disclose transactions
with Group companies qualifying as related parlies provided that consolidated financial statements are
publicly avallable

Cash flow statement
Under FRS 1 (Cash Flow Statements (revised 1996)), the Company 1s exempt from the requirement to
prepare a cash flow statement on the grounds that it 1s a subsidiary undertaking of a parent undertaking

which produces a consolidated cash flow statement The cash flow of the Company i1s consolidated in the
Group financial statements
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